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Korean Re has led the nation’s reinsurance industry since
its establishment in 1963. Founded originally as a statefunded enterprise and then privatized in 1978, the company
has grown to become the leading reinsurer not only in
Korea but also across Asia. Our success has been largely
based on our capital strength, risk management expertise,
and client-oriented service.
We have maintained our dominant position in the domestic
reinsurance market by constantly improving efficiency
in business operations to meet increasingly diverse and
sophisticated needs of our clients and markets.
In a fast-evolving global market environment, Korean
Re has focused on enhancing its responsiveness to the
challenges presented. We are now well positioned to
leverage our risk management capabilities and reinsurance
capacity across all lines of business. Currently, we rank as
the world’s 9th largest reinsurer in terms of gross written
premiums.
As we move into the next 50 years following the celebration
of our 50th anniversary in March 2013, we announced
Vision 2050, a declaration of our ambition to become one
of the top reinsurers in the world by the year 2050.

Summary of
Korean Re History

Company Profile

1963
March
Established as a state-owned company, Korean Non-Life
1963 March Reinsurance Corporation
1978
March
Reorganized as a publicly owned company,
1963 March Korean Reinsurance Company
1979
January
April

Opened the Singapore Branch
Established the New York Liaison Office

1984
June

Relocated to a newly built headquarters in Susong-dong

1995
October
Set up a local subsidiary in Hong Kong,
1963 March Worldwide Insurance Services, Ltd.
1997
October

Opened the Beijing Liaison Office

1999
May

Announced a mid-to-long term growth plan, “Vision 2020”

Korean Re has led the nation’s reinsurance industry since
its establishment in 1963. Founded originally as a statefunded enterprise and then privatized in 1978, the company
has grown to become the leading reinsurer not only in
Korea but also across Asia. Our success has been largely
based on our capital strength, risk management expertise,
and client-oriented service.

2001
October
Recognized as the top reinsurer in Asia in terms of
1963 March net written premiums
2002
May
June
October

Obtained a credit rating of “A-“ from A.M. Best
Renamed as Korean Re and announced a new corporate identity
Nominated as Reinsurance Company of the Year
by the Asia Insurance Review Magazine

2006
December Acquired a credit rating of “A-(Stable)“ from S&P
2008
April
Opened the Dubai Liaison Office
2008 April Established Korean Investment Advisory Company
2010
May
2011
February

Nominated as “Emerging Market Player of the Year”
by Reinsurance Magazine
Gained a credit rating of “A (Stable)” from A.M. Best

Key events in 2014

January

June

•Announcement of Vision 2050:
•Value-Creating Reinsurance Leader
•Participation in the emergency relief
•work in the Philippines

•Participation in the Habitat for Humanity
•Korea program

February

September

•Korean Re New Year’s Concert

•Recruiting 2014

March

October

2012
April
Total assets increased to KRW 7 trillion
September Recognized as the world’s 10th largest reinsurer in terms of
gross written premiums

•Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
•51st Anniversary of Korean Re
•Korean Re Risk Management Seminar

•Marine Insurance Legal Seminar

2013
March
Celebrated the company’s 50th anniversary
June
CEO Jong-Gyu Won took office
September Recognized as the world’s 9th largest reinsurer in terms of
gross written premiums

May

November

•Korean Re Reinsurance Management
•Seminar
•Toa Re Summit
•Liability Market Seminar

•Reinsurance Management Strategy
•Meeting

We have maintained our dominant position in the domestic
reinsurance market by constantly improving efficiency
in business operations to meet increasingly diverse and
sophisticated needs of our clients and markets.
In a fast-evolving global market environment, Korean
Re has focused on enhancing its responsiveness to the
challenges presented. We are now well positioned to
leverage our risk management capabilities and reinsurance
capacity across all lines of business. Currently, we rank as
the world’s 9th largest reinsurer in terms of gross written
premiums.
As we move into the next 50 years following the celebration
of our 50th anniversary in March 2013, we announced
Vision 2050, a declaration of our ambition to become one
of the top reinsurers in the world by the year 2050.

Build the foundation to
improve global
competitiveness

Maximize underwriting
efficiency and
expertise

Solidify the leading
position in the
global market

Three-Stage Roadmap for Vision 2050

vision 2050

t
Toward Social Responsibility

Third Stage

s
Sustainable Growth

Second Stage

u
Unparalleled competitiveness

First Stage

R
Robust profitability

Value-Creating
Reinsurance
Leader

t
Trustworthy Client Relationship

Korean Re aims to become
one of the top three reinsurers
in the world by 2050

s

t

Unparalleled competitiveness

Sustainable Growth

Toward Social Responsibility

vision 2050

u

Robust profitability

Korean Re has built uniquely strong relationships
with clients over the course of its 50 years of
corporate history. The steadfast development of
the relationships has been driven by clients’ trust
in Korean Re. We invariably assure our clients that
we value our clients’ business growth as much as
our own. Under this guiding principle, we identify
the needs of our clients and help them find growth
opportunities. The process essentially involves our
support for their new product development. We also
develop and offer a wide range of client services in
step with changing market circumstances, which has
a positive impact on our clients across the value chain
of their business. As we move toward Vision 2050, we
will remain a reliable partner for our clients.

R

Trustworthy Client Relationship

Trustworthy Client Relationship

t

t

Sustainable Growth

Toward Social Responsibility

vision 2050

s

Unparalleled competitiveness

The principal focus of our business management will remain
on boosting profitability. In the face of a rapidly-evolving
business environment, it is increasingly difficult to achieve
high profitability through top-line growth plans only. We
will continue to readjust our business portfolios in ways
that create robust earnings. The key components of this
strategy are rigorous risk management procedures, efficient
resource allocation, strong underwriting expertise and stable
investment management. We will make sure that steady
improvement is made in each of these areas so that our riskadjusted profitability is maximized.

u

Robust profitability

Robust Profitability

R

Toward Social Responsibility

vision 2050

t

Sustainable Growth

Business growth goes hand in hand with a sharpening of competitive
edges. As a reinsurer that takes aim at the global markets, we
identified three building blocks of our global competitiveness: strong
capacity and credit ratings, high-quality reinsurance services based
on effective pricing and underwriting, and highly-skilled human
resources. Good is not enough to become the leading player in the
global market. Building a set of unparalleled competitive advantages
forms the most important pillar of our endeavor toward Vision 2050.

s

Unparalleled competitiveness

Unparalleled Competitiveness

u

10

We are gearing ourselves toward sustainable growth. It will ultimately
benefit all stakeholders including our employees, clients and partners. The
sustained development of our business depends on the creation of new
reinsurance demands and markets. We will target niche segments of the
advanced markets while tapping aggressively into high-growth markets in
the emerging world. The exploitation of such new growth opportunities will
call for strategic partnerships with overseas insurers or reinsurers, which
may also entail our equity participation in foreign businesses. And the whole
approach will be framed in light of the longer-term protection of our core
business.

t
Toward Social Responsibility

Sustainable Growth

s
Sustainable Growth

vision 2050
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Toward Social Responsibility

vision 2050

t

Toward Social Responsibility
Korean Re has a strong belief in corporate contribution to the development of
communities and society. We do not see our social responsibility initiative as a
means of reputational enhancement. Rather, we take it seriously. As a reinsurer
dedicated to providing risk management solutions and protections against
both natural and man-made perils, we believe our corporate success is deeply
associated with the resilience and security of the communities we serve. Our path
toward a world-class reinsurer will inevitably require us to have a greater sense
of social responsibility. We will stay firmly committed to making our society safer,
stronger and more resilient.

vision 2050

We serve to protect your future

Stand firmly behind our clients to support their growth
and profitability in a way that is also good for our business

TOWARD 100 YEARS OF
PROGRESS AND GROWTH
Vision 2050 reflects our recognition that expanding into overseas markets is an essential
course of action to keep our business moving forward. We target to substantially increase
the share of overseas operations in our business portfolio to ensure that Korean Re
becomes a household name in the global reinsurance market. Our competition has so far
been predominantly with international reinsurers operating in Korea. But now we are bracing

Take aim at the global markets for our continued growth by
seeking innovative approaches to new challenges

Provide high-quality reinsurance services and
risk management solutions tailored to the needs of our clients

Take the leading position in the global market and
promote the growth of the reinsurance industry

ourselves up for a no-holds-barred global competition in every sense of the word.
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Financial Highlights 2013

Capital Strength Ratings

AM Best

Gross Written Premiums
(Unit: USD million)

2012
2013

S&P

3,819.0

4,125.7

RISK-BASED CAPITAL RATIO

A
A-

206.3%

Net Written Premiums
(Unit: USD million)

2012
2013

2,451.2

FY2012

FY2012

(KRW billion)

(USD million)

Gross written premiums

4,566.4

4,125.7

5,645.5

5,012.3

Net written premiums

2,897.2

2,617.6

3,743.6

3,323.7

123.9

111.9

141.2

125.4

For the year

(Unit: USD million)

2013

FY2013
(USD million)

2,617.6

Net Income
2012

FY2013
(KRW billion)

84.0

Net income

111.9

At the year end
Total assets

7,619.9

7,150.9

7,306.1

6,506.4

Insurance reserves

4,113.3

3,860.1

3,774.5

3,361.4

Total shareholders’ equity

1,450.9

1,361.6

1,412.8

1,258.1

Financial ratio (%)
RBC ratio

208.7

Combined ratio

98.4

98.4

ROA

2.23

2.00

ROE

12.06

11.2

15.9

20.0

KRW 1,049
(USD 0.95)

KRW 1,195
(USD 1.06)

Payout ratio
EPS

Note: The graph above indicates a year-on-year comparison for the April to December period.

206.3

Note: FY2013 covers nine months from April to December as the fiscal year was shifted from the April – March period to the January – December period in
accordance with the revision of Korea’s insurance regulation. All figures above are in compliance with K-IFRS.
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Message from the CEO
Dear shareholders,
In FY2013, the global and local business environment surrounding the insurance industry remained unfavorable. A
combination of low interest rates and economic weakness continued to undermine profitability and curb new demand growth.
A strengthening regulatory framework forced insurers to readjust their business strategy. The reinsurance sector, in particular,
suffered intense competition, spurred by the continuous inflows of alternative capacity from the capital market.
These challenges, however, did not keep us from growing. In FY2013, Korean Re took over the top 9th spot in the global
reinsurance market in terms of gross written premiums, up one notch from the previous year. This was a particularly gratifying
feat as it came in the face of an increasingly competitive market landscape. One of the key factors driving the growth was our
stable capital strength. Korean Re has maintained solid credit ratings for many years now: an A.M Best rating of A for four
consecutive years and an S&P rating of A- for eight years in a row.
In terms of business results, our performance was fairly successful. Gross premium income grew by 6.2% to USD 4,125.7
million, with net income amounting to USD 111.9 million. The total assets expanded to USD 7,150.9 million while our
investment assets were valued at USD 3,646.3 million, up 5.3% YoY. Our solvency margin ratio also held steady at 206.3%.
Each and every member of Korean Re deserves credit for the robust business performance. It is also worth noting that the
stable investment results were driven by our disciplined but swift readjustment of the investment portfolio in tandem with
interest rate movements.

In FY2013, one of the most notable events for Korean Re was the announcement of Vision 2050: Value-Creating Reinsurance
Leader. Following the 50th anniversary on March 19, 2013, Korean Re came up with the new vision to map out a path toward
becoming a business that lasts over 100 years. Vision 2050 highlights our ultimate ambition to become one of the top global
reinsurers by the year 2050, creating long-term value for our clients, shareholders and the larger society.
The new vision will guide us to build on the achievements that we have made over the past five decades, throughout which
we have undergone many different phases of growth and adversity. In each stage, we always set out plans and goals and
exerted the best efforts to achieve them, moving ahead to the next phase. Vision 2050 is no different in that sense. What is
extraordinary about it, however, is its time horizon and depth of ambition. It is a long-term roadmap that covers the next 35
years or so and reflects our desire to become a top-class reinsurer in the world. The roadmap consists of three stages and
specifies a set of tasks and goals for each stage. The common thread that runs through all stages of the roadmap is our
commitment to the fundamental role of a reinsurer in providing clients with risk covers and risk management solutions as their
reliable partner. Living up to that role ultimately involves making the world a safer and more resilient place.
Reinsurance has always been a mainstay of our society and industry. This is now increasingly true as modern day risks are
becoming more complicated and interconnected. With economic and industrial progress, exposure growth is inevitable. And
the increased exposure inexorably extends across the globe through an interdependent economic system. Natural catastrophes
are also increasing both in frequency and intensity. Given the size of such natural or man-made perils and their complex nature,
they cannot be covered adequately without reinsurance capacity.

Vision 2050 highlights our ultimate ambition to become
one of the top global reinsurers, creating long-term
value for our clients, shareholders and the larger society.

In FY2014, Korean Re will remain strongly dedicated to the traditional role as a reinsurance capacity provider while constantly
seeking innovation for risk management solutions in ways that best serve the needs of our clients and markets. Most
importantly, our ongoing push to advance underwriting skills and techniques will be further bolstered. We expect FY2014 will
mark a watershed year for our company, as it will be the starting point for the implementation of our new vision. Looking ahead
to the coming years toward Vision 2050, we renew our commitment to bringing the greatest value possible to our shareholders
and clients.
As always, we thank you for your trust and support.

Jong-Gyu Won
Chief Executive Officer
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Board of Management
Korean Re has an executive management team dedicated to ensuring efficient business
operations of the company. The executive leadership strives to fully leverage the innovative
power of all employees to create value for clients and shareholders.

CEO

Managing Director

Managing Director

Managing Director

Jong-Gyu Won

Sung-Bum Kang

Seog-Yong Hong

Chan Hwang

Executive Managing Director

Standing Auditor

Managing Director

Managing Director

Managing Director

Nam-Deuk Chun

Young-Soo Choi

Doo-Sup Chung

Kyou-Chil Chae

Joon-Kyo Kim
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inside korean re

8

AUGUST

Korean Re became the world’s 9th largest reinsurer
Korean Re moved up to 9th place in the global reinsurance market in terms of gross
written premiums as of FY2012, up one notch from 10th in FY2011 according to the
ranking of the global top 50 reinsurers, released in August 2013 by A.M. Best, the
leading rating agency for the insurance industry. We became the first in the Korean
financial industry that secured a single-digit global ranking. This is a testimony to the
phenomenal growth that we have made over the past decades. Korean Re climbed up
23 spots for the span of only 14 years from 32nd in FY1998.
In Asia, Korean Re has long been recognized as the leading player in the reinsurance

5
MAY

market. Since 2002, we have remained Asia’s top reinsurer in terms of net reinsurance

years. Aggressive pushes to expand overseas operations enabled us to achieve a 12%
annual growth in premium income since 1998.

11, with 23 delegates from 22 organizations of 16 countries attending. During the
seminar, participants shared their underwriting strategies and discussed ways to
facilitate industry development. Korean Re presented its underwriting practices and
analysis of global natural catastrophe risks. As part of an industrial tour program,
delegates visited Daewoo Shipbuilding & Marine Engineering, located on Geoje Island
off the southern coast of the country. They also had a tour of Geoga Bridge, an 8.2km
long bridge-tunnel fixed link that connects the island to the land.

10

OCTOBER

The 14th Asian Pool’s Forum in Seoul
The 14th Asian Pool’s Forum was held at Korean Re’s head office in Seoul from
October 7 through 10, with 18 delegates from 5 Asian countries present. The
participants, mostly market practitioners, shared their ideas on the regional regulatory
trends affecting nuclear insurance business and the latest developments of the power

Since its launch in 1979, the seminar has been attended by an accumulated total

generation industry in their respective home countries. They discussed the revision of

of 515 officials from 229 organizations. It has contributed to promoting information

the Atomic Energy Damage Compensation Act and the security system on nuclear

exchange with regard to key market and regulatory trends in the global insurance

power plants.

industry. It has also helped Korean Re strengthen its business networks throughout the
world.

JUNE

was the reinsurance expertise and know-how that we accumulated over the past 50

The 32nd Korean Re Reinsurance Management Seminar was held from May 5 through

techniques as well as the nation’s (re)insurance market overview. It also shared its

6

premiums written, announced by Standard and Poor’s. The key driver of our growth

The 32nd Korean Re Seminar

A Korean Re delegate made a presentation on issues regarding the current liability
insurance programs for power plant operators. It was followed by China’s report
on progress in the development of a premium reserve system to be set up against
catastrophic losses. A Japanese delegate shared the country’s plan to re-operate

Korean Re CEO made a keynote speech at the IIS meeting

nuclear power plants.

At the IIS 49th Annual Seminar held from June 16 – 19 in Seoul, Mr. Jong-Gyu

Since it was first launched in 1999, the Asian Pool’s Forum has been playing a major

Won, the CEO of Korean Re, gave a presentation on “Natural Catastrophes: Higher

role in the insurance industry in terms of information exchange for the development of

Frequency and Greater Volatility.” He provided an insightful analysis of the natural

the Asian nuclear insurance market. The next year’s event will be held in China.

disaster trends and their impacts on the global insurance industry.
He noted the recent natural catastrophe events presented four key lessons for the
insurance industry. First, insurers should enhance their underwriting performance within

Korean Re joined the Habitat for Humanity program

their maximum capacity and in consideration of aggregate risk. Second, when it comes

Since 2004, Korean Re has been taking part in the Habitat for Humanity programs. In

to pricing, insurers need to thoroughly evaluate risk exposure instead of simply relying

2013, four groups of Korean Re employees participated in a house-building project in

on the past loss data. Predicting and measuring risk exposure accurately is the most

the city of Chuncheon from September 24 to October 30. Over the course of a month,

important aspect of underwriting. Third, it is critical to seek flexible implementation of

each group visited the construction site and spent two days working to build 12 house

underwriting policies in line with the cycles of market hardening and softening while

units. CEO Jong-Gyu Won, who was also part of the volunteer work, said that building

working to execute a business strategy that prepares for worst-case scenarios. He

safe and decent shelters for those suffering from housing poverty resembled the

emphasized that things can be worse than the worst. Lastly, Mr. Won stressed the

role of the insurance industry in providing individuals and businesses with protection

need to have in place a sound risk management framework that enables adequate risk

against many kinds of risk. All participants agreed that it was a tremendously rewarding

control and transfer, particularly, by means of reinsurance.

experience for them and determined to stay committed to the habitat project.

Standing on a solid footing
for stable growth
In FY2013, Korean Re became the 9th largest reinsurer in the world
in terms of gross written premiums, up one notch from the previous year.
This feat brings us much closer to our goal of becoming one of
the leading players in the global market.

Review of Operations

28

Fire, Comprehensive and Engineering

30

Marine and Aviation

31

Casualty

32

Long-term AND Motor

34
Life

35
Overseas

36

Risk Management

37

Actuarial

38

Asset Management

40

Business R&D

41

Claims and Survey
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Overview

In FY2013, Korean Re delivered stable results in terms of business growth thanks to an increase in large facultative accounts

Summary of Gross Premium Income

and new accounts added to our book of overseas business. The gross premium income grew by 6.2% to USD 4,125.7

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

million, an outstanding performance given the slowing trend of the domestic property and casualty insurance market in a weak

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(%)

Fire, Comprehensive and Engineering

952,493

860,575

1,070,561

950,486

7.1

Marine

379,640

343,004

489,857

434,914

3.6

Casualty

606,640

548,098

867,121

769,864

△6.4

Long-Term

947,949

856,469

1,096,963

973,927

19.1

Motor

480,564

434,188

510,801

453,509

22.3

Life

641,139

579,267

844,029

749,362

6.3

Overseas

557,987

504,140

766,153

680,221

△7.7

4,566,412

4,125,742

5,645,485

5,012,283

6.2

economy. FY2013 was a unique financial year. It covered only nine months from April to December as the insurance industry

FY2012 YoY Change

shifted into a new fiscal year system of January to December, breaking away from the April to March period, in accordance with
the revision of the nation’s insurance regulation.
The encouraging development in growth was supported by increased reinsurance placements from the government-driven
property insurance sector as well as from long-term and motor insurance carriers. Our life operation also achieved solid
performance with a 6.3% increase in gross written premiums despite negative growth of the domestic primary market. In
particular, gross premiums earned from overseas markets increased appreciatively, accounting for 23.5% of the total life
premium income.
Along with stable business growth, Korean Re maintained a healthy level of profitability. Net income grew robustly to USD 111.9
million, resulting from our effort to increase the share of profitable accounts as part of the rebalancing of our business portfolio.
A relatively benign catastrophe loss environment in 2013 also helped boost our net income results. Our investment income
net of foreign exchange gains and losses was USD 106.2 million with an annual investment yield of 4.2%. We maintained
conservative investment strategy to make sure our investment assets are well-protected against financial market volatility driven
by economic uncertainty at home and abroad.

Total

Note: The exchange rates applied are KRW1,106.81 for FY2013 and KRW 1,126.33 for FY2012. The estimated figures for FY2014(E) are based on the exchange
rate of KRW 1,080.00. The same applies to the rest of this report. The conversion from KRW to USD is shown for information purposes only.

Going into FY2014, Korean Re targets to grow by 7% in terms of gross written premiums. We expect that growth will be fueled
by a rise in crop insurance underwriting and the ongoing initiatives to develop and expand new market segments including
the protection of builder’s risk. Our overseas operations will be further strengthened on the back of disciplined underwriting
decisions that bring in more good risks especially in such classes of business as engineering, hull and energy. An increasing
portion of our life business income will come from international markets including North America and Southeast Asia, with China
becoming our important market for growth. Meanwhile, we will continue to focus on boosting our bottom-line growth based
on a profit-oriented underwriting policy and enhanced risk management strategies for exposure accumulation. Net income for
FY2014 is anticipated to reach USD 152.8 million.

FY2013: April 1 – December 31 (9 months)
FY2012: April 1, 2012 – March 31, 2013 (12 months)
YoY Change: FY2013 vs. April 1 – December 31 of FY2012 based on the figures in KRW.
The figures do not include engineering, marine, aviation and life facultative business.
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Fire, Comprehensive and
Engineering

7.1%

Fire and Comprehensive
The Korean property insurance market remained relatively strong in FY2013. Although
the market suffered significant losses arising from fire events such as the one at a large-

increase in gross written premiums

scale cold storage facility, it managed to maintain a stable loss ratio of 42.2% in the
absence of large catastrophe events. Direct written premiums grew by 8.9% to USD 1.2
billion YoY. While premiums for fire insurance decreased by 3.0% to USD 176 million,
those for comprehensive insurance shot up by 11.2% to USD 1.1 billion, leading the
Moo-Seop Lee
General Manager
Fire Department

overall growth of the property insurance market.
Against this backdrop, Korean Re delivered robust results in the property segment
and solidified its leading position in the market based on stable and profitable growth

We delivered robust results in the
property line, supported by the
government-driven insurance sector
and new treaty business from

in FY2013. We wrote USD 657.5 million worth of property business, up 11.6% from
the same period a year earlier. Premiums for fire insurance increased by 6.7% to USD
137.8 million as we accepted new treaty business from the cooperative market, and
those for comprehensive insurance soared by 13.0% to USD 519.7 million with more
policyholders preferring to obtain fire protection through comprehensive insurance.

cooperatives.
Engineering
The engineering insurance market significantly declined due to a cut in new

Gross premium growth

Gross Written Premiums	
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

Fire

152,561

137,838

186,111

165,237
523,542

PROPERTY

11.6%
COMPREHENSIVE

13.0%

FY2012

Comprehensive

575,189

519,682

589,681

Engineering

224,743

203,055

294,769

261,707

Total

952,493

860,575

1,070,561

950,486

FY2013 covers 9 months from April to December
Engineering includes nuclear

Fire

6.7%

Nuclear

construction orders, which was driven by a reduction of the government budget for

The Korea Atomic Energy Insurance Pool (KAEIP) is managed by Korean Re on behalf

social infrastructure and a weak investment in construction by the private sector. Direct

of its eleven member companies. It wrote USD 29.6 million in gross premiums during

written premiums for engineering insurance shrank by 22.1% to USD 189.5 million.

FY2013, a decrease of 8.9% from the same period a year earlier caused primarily

Despite the decrease in market size, the relatively benign catastrophe loss environment

by a drop in premiums from overseas business. The domestic direct and overseas

allowed the loss ratio to remain at a fairly low level of 20.8%.

reinsurance operations brought in premiums worth USD 14.4 million and USD 15.2
million respectively.

Korean Re’s engineering insurance business also went down in FY2013, with
gross written premiums falling by 19.4% from the previous year. Adverse factors

Despite negative public sentiment toward nuclear power generation in the aftermath

are likely to persist into 2014 as the government has made another budget cut

of the Fukushima disaster in March 2011, the government recently announced its plan

for social infrastructure projects, and uncertainty surrounding the global financial

to increase the use of nuclear power for electricity generation by up to 30% by 2035.

market lingers around. Nonetheless, the conservative management of natural

This plan will be backed by the construction of new power plants, helping to support

catastrophe accumulation risks allowed us to maintain solid profitability in overseas

stable growth of the domestic nuclear insurance market in the long run. For overseas

inward business in FY2013 in the face of large-loss events across the world such

business, the KAEIP increased its foreign capacity from the current USD130 million

as hailstorms in Germany and typhoons in the Philippines and China. We expect

to USD150 million to accommodate the rising reinsurance demand from international

our overseas engineering insurance business to continue to grow on the expansion

pools.

of local construction companies’ overseas operations. More specifically, there are a
growing amount of construction orders in the pipeline in the Middle East and North
Africa, which take up the largest share of Korean construction companies’ overseas
business portfolios. Going forward, they are expected to diversify their portfolios in a

Gross Written Premiums	

bid to increase the amount of orders being placed from other regions including Central

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

Domestic (Direct Insurance)

15,950

14,411

21,616

19,192

Overseas (Reinsurance)

16,848

15,222

22,008

19,540

Total

32,798

29,633

43,624

38,732

and South Americas and the broader Asian region. This move will hopefully boost our
overall results in engineering business in the years to come.

FY2013 covers 9 months from April to December

FY2012
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Marine and Aviation

Casualty

The Korean market for marine and aviation insurance continued to contract in FY2013

Participants in the Korean casualty insurance market have been besieged by tough

with direct written premiums falling by 3.5% to USD 587.4 million, representing 1.2%

operating conditions such as intense competition and increasing levels of retention

of the nation’s entire non-life insurance sector. This downward trend was sustained by

by primary insurers. Overall, the market entered 2013 mostly in a sluggish state. The

a slow economy putting a drag on the business of cargo and builder’s risk insurance,

slowdown in growth was particularly evident in traditional lines of casualty business

which makes up a large part of the marine insurance market.

such as general and professional liability.

The sluggish direct market adversely affected the business results of Korean Re to

In spite of severe liability accidents in 2013 such as hydrofluoric acid spills and large-

some extent but not significantly. The value of premium income from our marine and
Chul-Min Jang
General Manager
Marine Department
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aviation insurance operations grew by 3.6% to USD 343 million in FY2013. Even with
the negative growth of the domestic direct market for builder’s risk protection, our
hull insurance business remained in the positive territory, growing by 0.8% YoY and

amount Directors & Officers (D&O) claims by financial institutions, the rates increased
Dae-Woo Lee
General Manager
Casualty Department

only modestly across the board. The stabilization in pricing arose, in large part, from
a continued price competition and market softening driven by moderate loss ratios
recorded in the years leading up to 2013.

generating USD 248.9 million in premiums. This encouraging result was attributed to

Our marine and aviation insurance
business expanded despite the
sluggish direct market, thanks to our
strategy to strengthen our overseas

our strategy to strengthen our overseas facultative reinsurance operations over the
recent years. Our cargo insurance business, however, suffered some setbacks due
to intensifying competition among reinsurers and the consequent downward pressure
on prices. The premium income was down 12.5% to USD 52.9 million. The aviation

Korean Re navigated decently
through harsh circumstances of
the casualty market, solidifying our

Korean Re navigated decently through harsh circumstances of the casualty market.
Responding to various needs of our clients, we not only solidified our market
dominance domestically but also expanded our shares in the international market.

segment bounced back from the weak performance in 2012 caused by the delay of a

market dominance domestically

In FY2013, the liability class remained as the main source of our premium income,

facultative reinsurance operations

satellite launch and the resulting payment of return premiums. As a consequence, our

and expanding our shares in the

accounting for 32.1% of the total casualty premium volume. On the other hand, the

and the acceptance of new satellite

aviation premium volume jumped by 72.3% to USD 41.2 million in FY2013.

international market.

premium share of Personal Accident decreased from 31.5% to 27.6%, as reinforced
underwriting guidelines gave rise to a reduction in the volume of Group Personal

insurance business.
As far as profitability is concerned, we recorded a net income of USD 3.6 million in

Accident business. We wrote USD 8.3 million in premiums from overseas accounts,

FY2013, which is not a bad result given a series of large-loss events that the domestic

which represented a 1.5% share.

marine and aviation insurance market suffered over the course of the year. We also
managed to maintain profitability in our cargo insurance business in the face of a soft

In 2014, the casualty reinsurance market is expected to continue to stagger for the

market cycle. Moreover, the restructuring of our overseas hull and energy insurance

same reasons as in the previous year. The traditional liability sector will keep trending

portfolios allowed us to deliver stable operating results.

down with primary insurers increasing their retention levels.

The 2014 outlook for the Korean marine insurance market is brightened by the

Domestically, our Casualty Department will concentrate on improving underwriting

increasing trend of export and import cargo traffic and partly by the base effect of

results by rebalancing our treaty portfolio and cutting back on loss-making accounts.

the market downturn in 2013. The shipbuilding business is also on track to recovery,

We will also lead the development of new products that could drive market growth,

albeit not to the extent of its peak in 2008, helping to boost the builder’s risk insurance

such as “Business Casualty Package Insurance.” Our overseas inward business is also

segment in the coming year. Overall, the marine insurance market is projected to grow

expected to grow gradually based on our underwriting expertise and solid business

by 6.8% in 2014. These improving market conditions are likely to provide a tailwind

network with overseas partners.

for our marine business in 2014. Going forward, we will stay devoted to developing
new profitable accounts and exploring growth opportunities including defense risk
underwriting to bring stable operating results from the overseas hull, aviation, offshore

Gross Written Premiums	
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

energy and cooperative segments.
Liability

Gross Written Premiums	
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

FY2013
Hull

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

275,467

248,884

359,024

318,756

Workers’ Compensation
Personal Accident
Surety & Credit
Special Risks & Others

Cargo

58,565

52,913

94,025

83,479

Overseas Inward Business

Aviation

45,608

41,207

36,808

32,680

Total

379,640

343,004

489,857

434,915

Total

FY2013 covers 9 months from April to December

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

FY2012
(USD)

195,017

176,198

267,663

237,642

22,647

20,462

28,825

25,592

167,140

151,010

272,820

242,220

62,394

56,372

88,745

78,791

150,310

135,805

209,069

185,619

9,131

8,250

-

-

606,640

548,097

867,121

769,864

FY2013 covers 9 months from April to December
The total amounts may be slightly different from the sum of individual items due to rounding errors
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Long-term AND Motor

19.1%

22.3%

Gross premium growth

Gross premium growth

Long-term

Motor

The Korean long-term insurance market experienced a moderate growth of 5.8%

The Korean primary motor insurance market has been mostly treading water, posting a

in FY2013 in terms of direct written premiums, which totaled USD 28.6 billion. This

premium volume of USD 8.9 billion in FY2013, up a mere 1.2% YoY. An increase in the

relatively weak performance was mainly due to a sharp decrease in initial premiums

number of new car registrations was offset by a growth in sales of discount insurance

Kyou-Chil Chae
Managing Director
Long-Term and Motor Department

Our long-term business achieved
impressive results as premium rates
went up following the loss ratio
aggravation in the previous year. We

and a slowing growth in renewal premiums. New demand for savings-type insurance
plunged in 2013 following a period of exceptional growth in savings insurance sales
in the run up to the scaling-back of tax benefits for such products. As a result,
premiums for savings insurance fell by 3.1% YoY. The business of property lines also

Gross premiums from our
motor insurance business grew
significantly thanks to an increase in

policies such as Pay-as-you-drive and Black box for car. The market started the year
2013, with loss ratios improving on the implementation of a 20% deductible for own
damage coverage. However, an increasingly competitive market environment led the
average premium per car to drop, pushing up the annual loss ratio to 88%.

remained sluggish with a premium volume increase of 2.0%, as the growth spurt of

new business. Net profitability also

also accepted an increased amount

comprehensive insurance was moderating. On the other hand, premiums for personal

increased with an improvement in

In FY2013, Korean Re delivered fairly robust results in the business of motor insurance,

of new business.

accident and health insurance soared by 15.3% on the booming sales of Exclusive

reinsurance terms.

with its gross written premiums soaring by 22.3% YoY to USD 434.2 million. The net

Medical Indemnity Insurance as well as on high renewal rates.

income substantially improved to USD 2.7 million thanks in large part to a decrease in
large-loss events arising from natural perils, even though the loss ratio went up by 4.8%p

In FY2013, Korean Re’s long-term insurance business generated gross written

to 87.3%.

premiums worth USD 856.5 million, up 19.1% YoY. Its net written premiums accounted
for 26.8% of the total net written premiums.

We will strive to make sure our business stays firmly on course to stable growth by
responding swiftly to key developments in the market. The primary market in FY2014

The growth momentum of our long-term business will be sustained at a stable level

is projected to record a rise of 2.3% in motor premium volume to USD 11.7 billion. In

throughout FY2014, supported by the price renewal of in-force medical indemnity

tandem with this, Korean Re expects to achieve a 3.4% growth in motor insurance

policies. Another important growth driver will be the launch of new products developed

business. The market is showing signs of an increase in pricing as motor insurance

exclusively for the elderly, which can boost the market in the face of weakening demand

carriers work to curb their loss ratios. They may attempt to urge the authorities to

for health insurance products. We will work closely with our clients to support them in

reform related regulations or work out measures by themselves to improve their

developing such new products and provide them with reinsurance coverage to help

operational practices to bring increasing losses under control.

increase their capacity to accept new risks. The strengthening of the risk-based capital
requirements imposed on the insurance industry may force primary insurers to reduce

In step with any changes in the regulatory and market environment, Korean Re is

the level of risks that they retain, which can translate into greater growth opportunities

poised to realign its operations to accommodate the shifting needs of its clients,

for our long-term reinsurance business.

helping primary insurance players stabilize their operational results. Another important
focus for our motor business in FY2014 will be to reinforce the management of natural

The long-term insurance market is faced with a set of challenges including enhanced

disaster risks as its claims performance depends heavily on natural catastrophe events.

regulations on personal information protection and high loss ratios of in-force policies.
These challenges add to the setbacks that the insurance industry is suffering in general
such as decreasing insurance demand in a prolonged period of low economic growth

Gross Written Premiums	
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

and low interest rates. Despite the challenging environment, we will remain committed
to providing reinsurance products and services in ways that best serve the needs of
our clients, standing firmly behind them as they work through the current and future
challenges.

Long-term
Motor
Total

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

FY2012
(USD)

947,949

856,469

1,096,963

973,927

480,564

434,188

510,800

453,508

1,428,513

1,290,657

1,607,763

1,427,435

FY2013 covers 9 months from April to December
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Life

Overseas

The Korean life insurance market in FY2013 showed negative growth due to the

In FY2013, gross premiums from our overseas operations decreased by 7.7% to USD

temporarily strong growth in FY2012 and delayed economic recovery. The net income

504.1 million as our focus remained on enhancing profitability and cycle management.

marginally increased on an improvement in loss ratio and a favorable return on

In response to a softening reinsurance market, we held fast to disciplined underwriting

investment. The total premium income declined to USD 101.2 billion. As for individual

and portfolio readjustment aimed to reduce the share of poorly performing accounts in

and savings life insurance, the premium volume shriveled while premiums for group

our business.

and protection-type life insurance expanded. The group insurance segment is slowing
down as large businesses have completed the shift from the traditional severance pay

Our treaty business shrank by 6% due to portfolio restructuring especially in the Middle

system to retirement pension plans, limiting the growth of new demand.

East and Africa and the downsizing of our business in natural catastrophe prone

Si-Young Lee

Young-Bae Lee

General Manager

Acting General Manager

Life Department

The combined market share of three major life insurers - Hanwha, Samsung and Kyobo
– remained stable at 50%. However, NH Life Insurance, which was established in

Overseas Department

March 2012, has aggressively expanded its operations, and other small and medium-

Our life insurance operations
delivered stable results as we
focused on exploring new overseas

sized companies are also making great pushes to diversify their product offerings and
distribution channels, eating away the market share of the major players.

Branch was also down slightly since the renewal terms deteriorated in most Southeast
Asian countries including Thailand and Singapore in 2013 compared to the previous
year.

Gross premiums from our overseas
operations decreased as our focus

Amid the changing market dynamics, Korean Re fared relatively well. In FY2013 we

regions such as North America and East Asia. The premium volume from our Singapore

remained on enhancing profitability

The conservative and selective underwriting strategy led our facultative operation to
suffer a 23% decrease in premium income. This seemingly discouraging performance
was an inevitable result of our effort to build a well-balanced portfolio that will allow

recorded USD 579.3 million in gross written premiums from our life operation, up 6.3%

and building a well-balanced

new products in cooperation with

from the same period a year before. Gross premiums earned from overseas markets

portfolio that will allow us to attain

strengthen the evaluation of individual risk quality and the management of natural peril

primary insurers.

increased to USD 136.4 million, representing 23.5% of the total life premium income.

profitable growth in the years

accumulation.

markets like China and developing

us to attain profitable growth in the years to come. The task essentially required us to

to come.
In order to better respond to a rapidly changing life business environment, Korean Re

As we hold to selective underwriting, we believe it is critically important to keep a close

continued to strengthen its reinsurance services. We ran educational programs tailored

watch on global market developments and trends that can affect our business and

to different client needs and enhanced the quality of our technical assistance to clients

clients. One of the key market trends over the recent years is an increase in reinsurance

by putting in place an electronic underwriting manual service. Meanwhile, we increased

capacity resulting from excess capacity among traditional reinsurers and an influx of

our engagement with primary insurers to jointly develop new life products and facilitate

capital market funds into the non-traditional reinsurance sector such as catastrophe

the growth of new market segments. Our role of providing capacity to primary insurers

bonds. This trend will be further reinforced by a relatively benign catastrophe loss

was essential to their effort to ensure stable underwriting of new products such as

activity in 2013, setting the stage for an increasingly fierce competition among

lifetime cancer coverage and policies exclusively for the elderly or children, all of which

reinsurers and an extended period of market softening.

were co-developed. We also increasingly accepted business involving new products
developed solely by primary insurers.

In these circumstances, we will stay focused on improving the quality of our overseas
business portfolio through diversification by line of business and region. This will help

In addition, we stepped up our effort to tap into the overseas markets in the face of

bring us greater bottom-line growth in the long-term, although our top-line performance

limitations in domestic market growth. We forged strategic partnerships with foreign

may be hampered somewhat along the way.

insurers to develop new markets and collect related market data. North American
countries and Taiwan continued to generate stable business and income for Korean
Re while China and Southeast Asian countries have been emerging as our potentially
important markets. Going forward, we plan to put a greater focus on our overseas
business to further boost our underwriting results. On the domestic market front, we
will continue to provide high-quality reinsurance services built upon our product analysis
and development capabilities, further cementing our leading position in the market.
Gross Written Premiums	

Gross Written Premiums	

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Life

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

641,139

579,267

844,029

749,362

FY2013 covers 9 months from April to December

Overseas

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

557,987

504,140

766,153

680,221

FY2013 covers 9 months from April to December
The figures do not include engineering, marine, aviation and life facultative business.

FY2012
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Risk Management

Actuarial

The goal of Korean Re’s risk management is to maintain a substantial level of capital

The Actuarial Department performs two separate and distinct roles: product

adequacy in order to fulfill our obligation to policyholders and to optimize risk-adjusted

development and actuarial analysis. Our product development initiatives are focused

returns by means of effective risk management tools.

on meeting new and diverse market demands. Much effort has gone into developing
non-traditional insurance products such as cancer and LTC/dementia coverage for

Capital adequacy management is at the center of our risk management activities. We

the elderly, policies for hypertension and diabetes patients and dental insurance. The

aim to maintain our company’s regulatory RBC ratio above 200%, which is twice as

development of such products is contributing to stable business results of our Life and

high as the minimum requirement by the Financial Supervisory Service (FSS). We also

Long-term underwriting.

keep a sufficiently high level of the capital adequacy ratio measured by our own internal
Kwang-Shik Jeong
General Manager
Risk Management Team

models.
The organization of Korean Re’s risk management is organically comprised of the Risk

Han-Il Lee
General Manager
Actuarial Department

Korean Re’s risk management
aims to maintain a substantial
level of capital adequacy to fulfill
our obligation to policyholders

Korean Re classifies risks into 5 categories; insurance risk, market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and operational risk, all of which are measured, analyzed, reported and

focus of our product development team. This helps us to introduce advanced
insurance products from overseas to the Korean market and develop new markets
abroad for the products that are available domestically. In 2013, we continued to offer

Management Committee (Board subcommittee), Risk Management Special Committee,
Risk Management Team and each business department.

Developing new products in cooperation with overseas reinsurers is another important

One of the most noteworthy
achievements in 2013 was that
we set up a new analysis system,

a range of knowledge-sharing services such as providing industry trend analysis and
holding actuarial seminars on various topics to support our underwriting departments
in meeting the needs of primary insurers.

controlled according to a set of criteria under the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM).

which enables us to provide

One of the most noteworthy achievements in 2013 was that we set up a new analysis

and optimize our risk-adjusted

The entire process is executed from company-wide perspectives. The ERM framework

actuarial support to underwriting

system, “MATRIX-I” (Multi Actuarial Terminal for ReInsurance tranXaction-I) in June.

profitability through a suite of

also enables us to measure and manage integrated risk and allows the portfolios of

departments in a more prompt and

The system has enabled us to provide actuarial support to underwriting departments

effective risk models.

insurance and investment to be optimized at the company level.

effective way.

in a more prompt and effective way in such respects as base rate adjustment, optimal
retention analysis, treaty strategy simulation and XOL pricing.

In addition, our financial stability is regularly checked through stress tests so as to
make sure the company has a high level of financial resilience against large-loss events.

Our chief actuary continued to successfully perform the task of liability valuation by

Another area of our focus is preventative risk management. We thoroughly screen

verifying the levels of the reserve and RBC ratio, which contributed to ensuring the

potential risks before making any high-risk business decisions, such as accepting new

financial health of the company. Making proactive responses to regulatory changes

risks, investing in derivatives or developing insurance and investment strategies.

such as the introduction of IFRS4 Phase II and the risk transfer testing of reinsurance
contracts, or the Expected Reinsurer Deficit (ERD), remained an important part of our

Keeping a close tap on the global economic outlook and financial market conditions is

actuarial work in 2013. Such regulatory developments may have significant implications

a fundamentally important aspect of our risk management activities. We closely monitor

for our underwriting and operational performance.

risk factors that can impact our insurance and investment operations and work out
effective countermeasures, seeking to stabilize our business results.

As we move into FY2014, we will focus on three important tasks. First, we will continue
to expand the scope of our product development. Domestically, we will support local

On the front of natural catastrophe risk management, we remained alert throughout the

insurers with the launch of simplified issue and female-only insurance policies. Product

year. Also, we use the AIR catastrophe model to better manage natural catastrophe

research on income compensation insurance and credit insurance will be conducted

risks in regions where we have significant exposure, such as China, Taiwan and North

in line with the product development needs of primary insurers. We will also study

America. We also raised the limit of non-proportional protection XOL for China and

the insurance market conditions in emerging economies like India and Malaysia to

Taiwan given our particularly high levels of exposure to the two markets. Catastrophe

seek ways to increase our overseas operations of personal line business, which

risk management was also strengthened by preemptive measures such as lowering the

may inevitably involve strategic cooperation with international reinsurers. Second,

capacity limits for highly accumulated countries and cresta zones and by carrying out

continuous improvement will be made to MATRIX-I in order to enhance our actuarial

investigations into disaster prone regions.

competitiveness in ways that comply with the global actuarial standards. Lastly, we will
strengthen our actuarial expertise and research functions through a variety of initiatives

Going forward, Korean Re will continue to adopt state-of-the-art risk management

such as organizing seminars, publishing articles and overseas product booklets, and

systems to reinforce our risk management infrastructure. It will help us maintain the

collecting statistics on a regular basis.

risk exposure of our business operations at a reasonable level and achieve stable
performance and growth.

These plans will help bring new drivers of growth to the company and build a strong
statistical infrastructure, which is an essential element of our effort to achieve Vision 2020.
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Asset Management

Yield

4.2%

As of the end of FY2013, our bond holdings accounted for 50.8% of the total invested
assets, or approximately USD 1,853 million. They are mostly composed of government
bonds and other fixed-income securities with high credit-ratings.
Invested Assets	
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Korean Re maintained the strategy of disciplined investment management while
Seog-Yong Hong
Managing Director
Asset Management Office

We held to disciplined investment
management to make sure our
investment assets are properly

Bonds

keeping a weather eye on economic growth prospects and financial market conditions.

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

FY2012
(USD)

1,971.7

1,850.3

1,774.0

1,579.8

Stocks

102.8

96.5

49.2

43.8

Short-term funds

628.5

589.8

715.2

636.9

The Korean economy recorded a 3.0% growth in 2013, supported by global economic

Foreign investments

805.0

755.4

804.2

716.2

recovery trends. The low interest rate climate persisted with the benchmark interest

Others

377.5

354.3

345.7

307.9

rate falling to 2.50%. With the movement of interest rates starting to stabilize in the

Total

3,885.5

3,646.3

3,688.3

3,284.6

second half of the year, the bond market also gained some level of stability. The three-

The total amounts may be slightly different from the sum of individual items due to rounding errors

year Korean treasury yield slightly increased to 2.86% as at the end of December 2013.

protected against adverse financial

As a result of growing financial market uncertainty particularly concerning the tapering

Total investment returns for FY2013 were worth USD 76.5 million. When foreign

market conditions.

of asset purchases in the U.S., the Korean equity market showed high levels of

exchange gains and/or losses are excluded, our net investment income stands at USD

volatility. The nation’s main stock index, KOSPI, tumbled in the first half of the year but

106.2 million.

rebounded later on the expectation of global economic recovery and closed 2013 at
2,011.34p.

Investment Income
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

The value of the Korean currency declined on concern of the U.S tapering in the first

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

half of the year. However, the nation’s current account surplus built up over the course

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

79.3

71.6

118.3

105.0

Bonds

of the year, allowing the won to gain strength. The closing exchange rate of the won

Stocks

was1,055.4 against the U.S. dollar on December 31, 2013.
Korean Re posted a 5.3% gain in the value of its invested assets thanks to its stable

INVESTMENT
portfolio

Short-term funds
Foreign investments
(Foreign investments)
Others

BONDS

Total
(Total)

cash inflows from premium income and investment returns. Total invested assets
amounted to USD 3,646.3 million.[1]
Our conservative investment strategy guided us to keep our investment portfolio
focused on fixed-income securities and other low-risk assets. The prudent investment
practices allowed our assets to be well-protected against financial market volatility,
giving rise to a stable level of investment profit.
Investment Results	
(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Invested Assets
Investment Income
(Investment Income)
Yield (%)
(Yield)
[1] The business results of the Asset
Management Office mentioned in this
report are based on the separate financial
statements of Korean Re

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

3,885.5
84.7
(117.5)
3.0
(4.2)

3,646.3
76.5
(106.2)
3.0
(4.2)

3,688.3
107.1
(135.2)
3.0
(3.8)

3,284.6
95.1
(120.0)
3.0
(3.8)

Note: For the B/S figures, KRW amounts have been converted into USD based on the exchange rates of KRW1,065.60 per
USD1.00 for FY2013 and KRW 1,122.90 for FY2012. For the I/S figures, the exchange rates applied are KRW1,106.81 for
FY2013 and KRW 1,126.33 for FY2012. The same applies to the rest of this report.
Gains and/or losses from foreign exchange hedging for insurance liabilities have been excluded.

50.8%
STOCKS

2.6%

FY2012

-0.5

-0.5

-19.7

-17.5

11.0
-9.1
(23.7)
4.0

9.9
-8.2
(21.4)
3.6

14.1
-9.1
(19.0)
3.5

12.5
-8.1
(16.9)
3.1

84.7
(117.5)

76.5
(106.2)

107.1
(135.2)

95.1
(120.0)

Gains and/or losses from foreign exchange hedging for insurance liabilities have been excluded.

Our fixed-income investment delivered a strong result of USD 71.6 million in gains,
representing 67.5% of our total investment income excluding foreign exchange gains
and/or losses but including capital gains and interest income. We slightly raised our

SHORT-TERM FUNDS

holdings of foreign assets to maintain a target level of foreign exchange exposures

16.2%

related to our insurance liabilities. Our foreign investment income net of foreign

FOREIGN INVESTMENTS

20.7%
OTHERS

9.7%

exchange gains and losses reached USD 21.4 million.
In FY2014, our portfolio strategy will stay unchanged in favor of safe assets. Since
the low interest rate environment may continue to deteriorate our interest income on
bonds, we are poised to increase our alternative investment holdings to achieve our
target return on investments.
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Business R&D

Claims and Survey

Business R&D is one of the most critical functions that support our development of

The Claims and Survey Department aims to enhance the quality of our claims

new growth engines. The goal of our business R&D is to discover and explore new

adjustment and risk survey work in ways that maximize the value of the company. We

sources of revenue in the domestic market by developing new commercial insurance

also work to ensure synergy effects are created between the claims adjustment and

products, increasing business engagements with the cooperative sector and providing

risk survey functions through their close coordination.

various corporate client services.
The Claims Team investigates, adjusts and resolves claims of various lines of nonIn FY2013, we attracted new clients such as Construction Guarantee and Korea RENT-

life insurance business. It also calculates the company’s outstanding loss reserves.

A-CAR Association, to whom we marketed a variety of non-life insurance products
Byoung-In Yoo
General Manager
Business R&D Department

such as general liability and performance bond. We also strengthened business
relationships with our existing large cooperative accounts including NongHyup
Insurance, the Community Credit Cooperative and the Credit Union by providing them

Another of its important tasks is to collaborate with primary insurers and independent
Yung-Heub Song
General Manager
Claims and Survey Department

with diverse services. As a result, there was an increase in our casualty business with

In FY2013, we have been successful
in not only attracting new corporate
clients but also strengthening
business relationships with our

them, particularly driven by liability and banker’s blanket bond lines. A total of USD 64.1
million in premium will be generated thanks to natural peril insurance, an increase in
the number of items covered by crop, livestock and aqua farming insurance, and the
enforcement of mandatory fire liability insurance for commercial businesses that are
generally open and accessible to the public.

existing cooperative accounts.

loss adjustors at the earliest possible stage in the case of large-loss events. And equally
important is making a proper legal response to such cases if necessary in light of our
salvage rights protection. We believe it is of critical importance to our business that we
share our claims results and their analysis with the rest of the company. To do so, we

The Claims and Survey Department
is staunchly committed to the goal
of enhancing the quality of our
claims adjustment and

regularly hold a claims reporting session and share information on the latest important
issues throughout our organization.
The Risk Survey Team identifies and analyzes different levels of risk exposure in
consideration of our underwriting needs, helping our underwriters to ensure effective

risk survey work in ways

pricing. One of its key tasks in FY2013 was to set out guidelines for identifying risk

Our Client Service Team, which is responsible for providing services to major

that maximize the value

accumulation at storage facilities after a thorough analysis of the total combined risks

commercial accounts, made a contribution to the increase in reinsurance premium

of the company.

that could be involved in a single-loss event. We also launched a program to assess

through various initiatives in FY2013. For example, we encouraged power plant

flood risks in China to support our related underwriting unit in response to the growing

operators to have the value of their insured properties appraised, provided technical

flood risks driven by climatic and socio-economic changes in the high-growth market.

service to policyholders and encouraged clients to introduce such products as

This was part of our initiative to expand the scope of our property risk survey beyond

Environmental Pollution Liability and Employee Dishonesty and Forgery Coverage (DDD).

domestic risks in order to step up our survey capability and ultimately improve our

We are also committed to increasing our responsiveness to the needs and requests of

underwriting performance.

clients across the value chain of the service provided, leading to an improvement in our
business results.

In addition, we appraised the risks of power plants on the basis of the property
valuation results produced in the previous year and analyzed power plant loss events

The Business R&D Department will stay focused on developing niche markets that will

over the past 10 years. The project was designed to create data to be utilized for

bring shared growth of primary insurers and Korean Re. Our core marketing strategy

underwriting risks involving power stations, which showed an increasing trend of

is based on close communication and engagement with clients, where the goal is to

incurring losses.

provide them with the greatest value possible.
The team also publishes the quarterly periodical, “Risk and Insurance,” which provides
information on new risk management techniques, ideas on ways to improve insurers’
risk management practices, and overseas case studies on claims adjustment. The
publication is disseminated to the non-life insurance community including our clients as
part of effort to strengthen our business networks and the value of our client service.
We also organize various seminars on topics like risk management where our clients,
brokers, policyholders and other associated organizations are invited to exchange
information and perspectives on issues and challenges facing the insurance market. In
FY2013, an in-house training session on process risk assessment was organized for
our facultative underwriters who accept overseas risks.
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Moving forward no matter what
challenges the market throws our way
In 2013 as in the previous year, the Korean insurance market struggled
to adjust to an unfavorable business environment. The global economy
grew only modestly, and interest rates remained persistently low.
The insurance regulatory framework continued to be tightened.
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Korean Insurance Market in FY2013
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Korean Economy in 2013

Economic growth

Construction investment

Balance of trade

slow recovery, a weakening Yen and a low level of inflation.

The Korean economy closed 2013 on a more vibrant note than

In the midst of a sluggish housing market, there was a 5.3%

The nation’s exports have grown throughout 2013 in step with

The yields on government bonds fluctuated over the course

where it started off. In spite of weak consumer spending and

increase in construction investment. It was driven by the

the economic recovery of its advanced trading partners while

of 2013, particularly in the wake of the U.S. Fed Chairman’s

equipment investment, its annualized growth rate was 3.0%

government’s pushes to stabilize the housing market and

its imports have been on the decline due to falling international

comments on the possibility of tapering asset purchases by the

in 2013, up 1.0%p from the previous year. The progress in

expand fiscal spending. Projects to build new power plants

oil prices. This put the trade balance at USD 67 billion in 2013,

U.S. government. The rate on the three-year treasury averaged

economic expansion came on the back of a rise in government

were also a significant driver in construction sector growth.

up USD 28.6 billion from a year earlier. The current account

2.79% in 2013.

spending and export growth. The nation’s gross domestic
product has increased every quarter over the course of 2013.

surplus expanded by USD 23.2 billion to USD 74.0 billion as
Employment

the nation has been consistently maintaining positive trade

Foreign exchange rate

The labor market showed slight but steady improvement in

balances both in products and services.

The value of the Korean won against the U.S. dollar has

Consumer spending

employment figures, with 64.4% of people aged between 15

Consumer spending rose by a moderate 1.8% as the growth

and 64 participating in the work force. The jobless rate, one of

Interest rates

surplus of the nation’s current account balance. An increase in

of household debts slowed down and housing prices declined.

the key lagging economic indicators, has been trending down to

The Bank of Korea cut the benchmark rate by 0.25% to 2.50%

international demand for Korean treasury bonds also fueled the

Still, the current levels of household debts including mortgage

3.2%, despite a lackluster economy in the first half of 2013.

in May 2013, following a 0.25% downward adjustment in

strengthening of the Korean currency. The annualized average

October 2012. Since then, the rate has remained unchanged

of the won-dollar exchange rate was 1,095 won against the

due to a combination of factors such as the global economy’s

dollar.

loans remain high, putting constraints on consumption growth.
There are other adverse factors, such as cuts in tax relief and

Prices

soaring housing rental costs as opposed to falling sales price.

Consumer price inflation was fairly stable, rising 1.3% in 2013,

been generally rising in 2013, in part reflecting the continued

down slightly from a 2.2% year-earlier increase. It was a 14Equipment investment

year low, and this stability in prices is primarily attributable to a

Equipment investment dwindled by 3.2% amid a prevalent

drop in the global prices of key commodities such as crude oil.

sense of economic uncertainty among businesses. Both small

The strengthening of the Korean won put a downward pressure

and big companies reduced their spending in fixed investments

on import prices, with the trend of low economic growth

but the downward trend was more noticeable among small and

continuing to depress demand.

medium-sized enterprises. Rising corporate debt levels also

PROSPECTS FOR 2014

seemed to discourage business investment activity even with a
strong export performance.

Trends of Economic Growth
GDP(nominal)

Economic growth rate

KRW billion

YoY growth rate (%)

375,000

5

350,000

4

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Equipment investment

The Korean economy is expected to grow 3.8% in 2014,

2014 will see business sentiments improve as the global

outstripping an estimated world economic growth of 3.6%

economy recovers, allowing equipment investment to expand

for the first time in four years. A strong export momentum

by 6.5%. The business community may also start to benefit

will be sustained as the global economy picks up, while

substantially from a series of measures that the government

consumer spending and business fixed investment will

has taken to encourage business investment, along with its

improve, putting the economy on a solid recovery track. There

regulatory initiative to remove barriers to investment.

are some downside risks, however, such as the slowdown of

3

325,000

emerging economies in the aftermath of a tapering of the U.S.

Construction investment

quantitative easing program and adverse impacts of a stronger

Construction investment is forecast to grow marginally by 2.5%

won on the export industry.

in 2014. Among the downside factors are the slowing growth
of new construction orders and a cutback on the government

Consumer spending
300,000
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2.0% in 2014, as the real purchasing power will be boosted
(Unit: %)

Economic Growth Rate
Source: Bank of Korea

2012

2013

2.3

3.0

2013
Q1
2.1

2013
Q2
2.7

2013
Q3
3.4

Personal consumption expenditure is projected to increase by

2013
Q4
3.7

by price stabilization and employment growth. Consumer
confidence is likely to remain stable, hovering above the
threshold point of 100, but a further increase in household debt
could hurt consumer demand, especially in the event of an
interest rate hike.

budget for social infrastructure projects.
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Korean Insurance Market in FY2013

Balance of trade

Interest rates

FY2013 was a unique year for the Korean insurance industry as

compared to the previous year, rising by 3.1% as the effects of

An increase in global import demand, supported by a

The accommodative monetary environment will continue to

it started shifting into the new fiscal year system of January 1

a new tax regime providing greater tax deductions for personal

recovering world economy, will drive the growth of Korean

prevail. The benchmark rate is predicted to stay flat or be

– December 31. As usual, FY2013 began on April 1 but ended

pension buyers became subdued.

exports. As the global economic recovery is led mostly by

pushed down further to 2.25% from the current 2.5%. Although

on December 31, covering only 9 months. The gross written

the advanced economies, Korean exports to the advanced

deflationary risk is growing, the rate will not be raised as the

premiums of the Korean insurance market in 2013 were worth

Amid growing popularity of low-priced motor insurance, such

markets including the U.S. and EU as well as to China will

government seems to be wary of adverse external factors

USD 115.5 billion, down 3.7% from the previous year, in large

as pay-how-you-drive policies, motor insurance premium

expand. Meanwhile, its exports to Japan may shrink due to the

such as a slowdown in emerging market growth, which could

part due to the base effects of the exceptionally strong growth of

growth was limited to 0.4% even with new car registrations

depreciation of the Japanese yen. Overall, Korea is projected

potentially present some setbacks to the Korean economy.

the life insurance sector in 2012.

turning around to rise. Premiums for P&C increased by 1.4% as
a slow economy led the fire, marine and guarantee insurance

to see a 2.1% increase in exports and a 5.2% jump in imports,
putting the nation’s current account surplus at USD 56 billion in

Foreign exchange rate

Non-life insurance

2014.

Whether the Korean won will remain strong against the dollar

The Korean non-life insurance market slowed down in 2013,

business to tumble, with casualty business remaining dull.

depends on the nation’s continued current account surplus. It

growing by a moderate 3.8%. The slowdown stemmed from

Life insurance

Prices

also hinges upon how much impact the unwinding of the U.S.

the low growth of motor insurance and retirement annuities,

FY2013 was a challenging year for the Korean life insurance

The annual inflation rate will edge up to 2.3% in 2014, as the

quantitative easing program would have on the value of the U.S.

and the slowing growth of long-term and P&C lines.

market, with total premiums diminishing by 8.0%. Personal line

continuing economic recovery drives an increase in prices on

dollar and other currencies of the emerging economies. Foreign

the demand side. Inflationary pressure will likely be offset to

exchange market experts forecast the Korean won to trade at

The long-term insurance market grew by 5.4% as the

growth of savings insurance sales observed in the previous years.

some extent by stabilizing international commodity prices. As

1,040 won against the dollar on average in 2014.

fast-growing savings-type insurance business was losing

Despite sales recovery of protection-type products, premiums

such, the nation’s inflation rate will remain within a stable range

momentum in growth. The personal accident and health

for personal insurance fell by 1.3%. The group insurance market

of 1-2% for three consecutive years.

insurance line posted a robust growth driven by continuous

results were relatively better, growing by 7.0%. This robust

inflows of renewal premiums. Personal annuities weakened

performance came in spite of a decrease in new demand

premiums showed a descending trend due to the exceptional

following a massive switch into corporate pension schemes.
Insurance Market Volume
(Unit: USD million)

FY2013

(Unit: USD 100 million, %)

GDP growth rate
Consumer spending growth rate

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014(E)

6.3

3.7

2.3

3.0

3.8

1.7
△1.9

1.8
△3.2

6.5

2.0

4.4

2.4

25.7
△3.7

3.6
△4.7

△2.2

5.3

2.5

3.7

3.4

3.2

3.2

3.3

Current account balance

288.5

186.6

508.4

740.0

560.0

Export volume

4,636

5,871

6,035

6,156

6,285

(Growth rate)

(27.4)

(26.6)

(2.8)

(2.0)

(2.1)

Import volume

4,159

5,580

5,541

5,486

5,772

Equipment investment growth rate
Construction investment growth rate
Unemployment rate

FY2011

FY2010

FY2009

Gross Written Premiums
Non-Life

45,710

60,860

54,738

44,938

35,774

Life

69,783

102,376

78,294

71,397

62,809

Total

115,493
△3.7

163,236

133,032

116,335

98,583

23.2

10.3

12.0

8.8

Growth Rate (%)

Trends of Key Economic and Financial Market Indicators

FY2012

Assets
Non-Life

154,097

138,912

115,773

87,919

70,289

Life

539,822

505,924

408,429

358,376

304,038

Total

374,327

693,919

644,836

524,202

446,295

Growth Rate (%)

9.8

23.5

13.3

13.1

14.0

Premium to GDP (%)

13.3

14.5

12.1

11.5

11.3

FY2013

FY2012

FY2011

FY2010

Gross Written Premiums

45,710

60,860

54,737

44,938

35,774

Earned Premiums

44,709

59,461

53,424

43,411

34,666

Incurred Losses

37,579

49,883

44,826

35,043

27,188

1,347

2,122

2,176

1,756

1,263

Source: Korea Insurance Development Institute
compared to the period of April – December 2012

Non-Life Insurance Market
(Unit: USD million)

FY2009

(Growth rate)

(31.6)

(34.2)

(△0.7)

(△1.0)

(5.2)

Inflation rate

3.0

4.0

2.2

1.3

2.3

Net Income

3-year treasury yield

3.7

3.6

3.1

2.8

3.2

Technical Reserves

117,821

102,632

85,170

65,424

51,414

1,156

1,108

1,127

1,095

1,040

Total Assets

154,097

138,912

115,773

87,919

70,289

KRW/USD exchange rate
Source: Bank of Korea

Source: Korea Insurance Development Institute
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Non-Life Insurance Premiums by Line
(Unit: USD million)

FY2013

FY2012

FY2011

FY2010

FY2009

Fire

217

292

235

229

225

Marine

543

731

775

664

657

8,800

11,401

11,624

10,677

9,159

Motor

Market Overview
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as their tax benefits may be brought to the fore with other types

Life insurance

of income tax relief being eliminated. Over time, however, the

The life insurance market is predicted to bounce back in 2014,

personal pension market will benefit increasingly less from the

growing by 4.4%, up 12.4%p compared to the previous year.

upward adjustment of the tax deduction limitation for pension

The recovery will be boosted mostly by the protection-type

savings.

segment.

Guarantee

1,015

1,405

1,352

1,124

1,003

Casualty

3,794

4,744

3,959

3,394

2,887

The retirement pension market is expected to be locked in a

Personal line premiums will increase by 4.5% as protection-

28,466

35,687

30,830

24,240

19,016

2,875

low-growth trajectory as new demand could hardly be created

type products maintain a solid growth in sales, with continuous

6,600

5,963

4,610

2,827

45,710

60,860

54,738

44,938

35,774

after the completion of the transition into the corporate pension

inflows of renewal premiums. Insurers are focusing on

system. Retirement pension contributions are expected to rise

readjusting their product portfolios as a way to raise the share

by 2.9% in 2014. Motor insurance premiums are expected to

of protection-type business, a move to improve their bottom

grow by 2.3% on a moderate increase in new car registrations.

line. This effort essentially involves identifying where demand

An increase in premium rates is unlikely as pay-as-you-drive

lies and creating new demand for protection covers, which in

plans are gaining traction, bringing down per-car premium

turn supports the overall growth of the market.

Long-term
Annuity
Total
Source: Korea Insurance Development Institute

Life Insurance Premiums by Line
(Unit: USD million)

FY2013

FY2012

FY2011

FY2010

FY2009

prices. Premiums from P&C business are estimated to increase

Pure endowment

14,694

29,886

15,994

14,700

12,497

Death

21,564

27,382

25,592

24,700

23,628

by 6.2%, based on the stable performance of casualty business,

The base effects in the savings insurance market will disappear,

Endowment

12,625

19,682

6,697

but most of the increase will be ascribed to the base effect of

and a return to the traditional level of growth is expected over

negative growth of marine and guarantee lines observed in

the course of 2014. Sales of variable savings products are also

2013.

set to improve as the global economic recovery gives rise to

Group

10,909

9,049

557

709

710

705

728

6,299

5,874

6,110

5,545

5,231

Variable

14,044

18,843

18,981

16,698

14,028

Total

69,783

102,376

78,294

71,397

62,809

Retirement

financial market stability, stoking demand for risky assets.

Source: Korea Insurance Development Institute

The group insurance segment will continue to slow down,
growing marginally by 2.9%, with a low expectation for a new
source of demand.

Prospects for 2014
Non-Life Market Growth Trends

After going through a 9-month period of FY2013, the Korean

Non-life insurance

insurance industry will have a full 12-month fiscal year starting

The total non-life insurance premiums are expected to increase

on January 1, 2014. In FY2014, the insurance market is

by 6.1%, supported by long-term and personal pension lines.

projected to expand by 5.0%, a level similar to the nation’s

(Unit: %)

FY2011

FY2012

FY2013

FY2014 (E)

Long-Term

21.2

17.7

5.4

7.4

Personal Annuity

38.8

3.1

6.7

5.1

21.1
△1.5

0.4

2.3

nominal economic growth rate. The insurance penetration

Premiums from long-term insurance business will post a 7.4%

rate is forecast to go up to 13.9% as the growth rate of gross

growth backed by personal accident and health products. The

P&C

12.7

13.9

1.4

6.2

written premiums may exceed the nominal GDP growth rate,

sales of savings insurance, which was once briskly driving the

Total

17.5

11.6

3.8

6.1

which is projected to moderate in 2014.

growth of the long-term market, will likely continue to contract.

FY2011

FY2012

FY2014 (E)

5.9
△0.1

34.6

FY2013
△13.1
3.7
△22.9

4.3

6.9
△8.0

2.9

Motor

Source: Korea Insurance Research Institute

Personal pension contributions are expected to grow by 6.7%
Life Insurance Market Growth Trends
(Unit: %)

Premium Income Growth Trends
(Unit: %)

Individual

FY2010

FY2011

FY2012

FY2013

FY2014(E)

19.2

17.5

11.6

6.1

Savings-type

9.6

Life

7.9

5.8

31.3

3.8
△8.0

4.4

Group

5.3

50.6
△3.1

Total

12.0

10.3

23.2

△3.7

5.0

Total

5.8

31.3

Non-Life

Source: Korea Insurance Research Institute

Protection-type

Source: Korea Insurance Research Institute

7.4

4.5
4.6
4.4

Making our society safer,
stronger and more resilient
We have a strong belief in corporate contribution to
the development of society. As a reinsurer dedicated to providing
protections against a wide range of perils, we believe our corporate
success is deeply associated with the resilience and security of
the communities we serve.

Corporate
Social Responsibility

54

Korean Re’s engagement with Habitat for Humanity

55

Emergency relief efforts in the Philippines
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We are firmly committed
to making our society safer,
stronger and more resilient
Korean Re has a strong belief in corporate
contribution to the development of communities
and society. In particular, as a reinsurer dedicated
to providing risk management solutions and
protections against both natural and man-made
perils, we believe our corporate success is deeply
associated with the resilience of the communities
we serve against such perils.

Social
inclusion

Korean Re supports the socially
marginalized to help them rebuild or
improve their livelihood

Balanced
social
progress

Korean Re is committed to the
development of rural communities to
ensure balanced social progress

Culture-based
community
development

Korean Re upholds the idea that art
and culture can be a powerful agent
of community development

52

Corporate Social Responsibility

53
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Emergency
relief efforts
in the Philippines
As part of its commitment to Habitat for Humanity,
Korean Re sent a volunteer work delegation to Cebu,
the Philippines to support the relief work underway after
Super Typhoon Haiyan devastated many parts of the
country on November 8, 2013.
The team consisting of 18 Korean Re employees and
3 members of Habitat for Humanity Korea visited
Daanbantayan on January 5-10 of 2014, located on the
northern tip of Cebu Island. They provided a helping hand
to Habitat for Humanity Philippines in its effort to assist
villagers with rebuilding their houses after the typhoon.
They packed and delivered shelter repair kits to affected
families. The kits containing lumber, plywood, nails and

Korean Re’s
engagement with
Habitat for Humanity

tools like hammers and saws were to be used when
the displaced worked to build their emergency shelters.
Although two months had passed since the typhoon, a
number of families still remained homeless as evidenced
by a long line of people waiting for the emergency
supplies from early in the morning.

Korean Re has been taking part in the Habitat for

This experience allowed Korean Re to become more

Humanity programs since 2004. In 2013, four groups of

conscious of the critical role the insurance industry plays

Korean Re employees participated in a house-building

in protecting communities against natural catastrophes,

project in the city of Chuncheon from September 24 to

which are increasing both in frequency and severity. The

October 30. Over the course of a month, each group

super typhoon that slammed through the south central

visited the construction site and spent two days working

part of Cebu was one of the most powerful typhoons

to build 12 house units. CEO Jong-Gyu Won, who was

ever recorded, with wind gusts of 105m/s. It left as many

also part of the volunteer work, said that building safe

as 8,000 people deceased or missing, and caused an

and decent shelters for those suffering from housing

economic loss of around USD 15 billion.

poverty resembled the role of the insurance industry in
providing individuals and businesses with protection

Starting from the recent work in the Philippines, Korean

against many kinds of risk. All participants agreed that it

Re intends to expand its global disaster relief efforts

was a tremendously rewarding experience for them and

to support those suffering in the aftermath of natural

determined to stay committed to the habitat project.

catastrophe events worldwide.
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Improving business fundamentals
to enhance growth and capital position
Our operating performance was fairly stable in FY2013.
We believe our business is well positioned to continue the upward
trend into the coming year as we have been firmly dedicated to
strengthening our business fundamentals over the past several years.

Financial Review

58

Management’s Discussion & Analysis

61

Korean Re’s share price

62

Financial Statements
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Business Highlights

By line of business, our long-term and motor insurance business recorded the highest results in FY2013, with the YoY growth rates of
19.1% and 22.3% respectively. We continued to post a healthy growth of 6.3% in life business on the back of our strong performance

In 2013 as in the previous year, the Korean insurance market struggled to adjust to an unfavorable business environment. The global

in the overseas markets. The combined result of our fire, comprehensive and engineering insurance business was a 7.1% growth.

economy grew only modestly, and interest rates remained low. The insurance regulatory framework continued to be tightened. In the

It was driven mainly by the property and comprehensive insurance segment. Marine and aviation grew by 3.6%, a relatively stable

face of such a tough operating environment, we made notable achievements in FY2013. Korean Re became the top 9th reinsurer in

performance given the downturn of the primary market. Casualty showed somewhat weak results with gross premiums falling by 6.4%,

the world in terms of gross written premiums. We deservedly maintained solid credit ratings, with an S&P rating of A- and an A.M. Best

due to the slowdown in traditional lines of casualty business. Still, our dominance in the domestic market remained strong, and we

rating of A.

attracted new business from the overseas markets, which are expected to take up a larger share of our casualty business portfolio
in the coming years. Our overseas department saw its gross premium income decline by 7.7% as it continued to focus on improving

Our operating performance was stable in FY2013. Gross written premiums grew by 6.2% to USD 4,125.7 million while net written

profitability through strategic portfolio readjustment.

premiums rose by 2.7% to USD 2,617.6 million. Net income amounted to USD 111.9 million, a relatively strong result given that the
fiscal period covered only 9 months. At the end of December 2013, our total assets were valued at USD 7,150.9 million. The total
investment assets were worth USD 3,646.3 million, up 5.3% YoY.

Gross Premiums by Department
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(%)

million, up 7% YoY in FY2014. Our net income is projected to reach USD 152.8 million. We are confident that robust growth in our

Fire, Comprehensive and Engineering
Marine

952,493
379,640

860,575
343,004

1,070,561
489,857

950,486
434,914

business will lead to an increase in our capital strength, giving us necessary impetus to press ahead with Vision 2050.

Casualty

606,640

548,098

867,121

769,864

7.1
3.6
△6.4

Long-Term

947,949

856,469

1,096,963

973,927

19.1

Motor

480,564

434,188

510,801

453,509

22.3

Life

641,139

579,267

844,029

749,362

557,987
4,566,412

504,140
4,125,742

766,153
5,645,485

680,221
5,012,283

6.3
△7.7

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

YoY Change

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(%)

3,581.4
985.0

3,235.8
889.9

4,367.8
1,277.7

3,877.9
1,134.3

7.4
1.9

We believe our business is well positioned to continue the upward trend into the coming year as we have been firmly dedicated to
strengthening our business fundamentals over the past several years. We expect to generate a gross premium income of USD 5,853.7

Analysis of Operating Results
During the 9 month period of FY2013, Korean Re posted a 6.2% increase in gross premium income to USD 4,125.7 million. Over
the same period, our domestic business grew by 7.4% while the premium income from our overseas operations was up 1.9%. Our
commercial business was down 0.8% as the engineering and hull insurance operations showed a weak performance due to a sluggish
economy. This lackluster result contrasted with a 15.7% growth in personal insurance business, which exceeded the past 5 year
average growth rate.
Premium volume

Overseas
Total

Gross Premiums: Domestic vs Overseas
FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

YoY Change

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(%)

Gross written premiums
Net written premiums

4,566.4
2,897.2

4,125.7
2,617.6

5,645.5
3,743.6

5,012.3
3,323.7

6.2
2.7

Earned premiums
Ceded premiums

2,876.9
1,669.2

2,599.3
1,508.1

3,675.9
1,901.8

3,263.6
1,688.5

4.2
12.7

FY2013: April 1 – December 31 (9 months)
FY2012: April 1, 2012 – March 31, 2013 (12 months)
YoY Change: FY2013 vs. April 1 – December 31 of FY2012 based on the figures in KRW.

Premium income portfolio
Overseas
Commercial lines

6.2

FY2013: April 1 – December 31 (9 months)
FY2012: April 1, 2012 – March 31, 2013 (12 months)
YoY Change: FY2013 vs. April 1 – December 31 of FY2012 based on the figures in KRW
The figures do not include engineering, marine, aviation and life facultative business.

(Units: KRW billion, USD million)

Personal lines

YoY Change

21.6%

42.0%

36.4%

(Units: KRW billion, USD million))

Domestic
Overseas

FY2013: April 1 – December 31 (9 months)
FY2012: April 1, 2012 – March 31, 2013 (12 months)
YoY Change: FY2013 vs. April 1 – December 31 of FY2012 based on the figures in KRW
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Korean Re’s share price

Combined ratio

In 2013, Korea’s stock market volatility dropped to a significant degree by the historical standard, but the market still fluctuated severely
throughout the year. KOSPI, the nation’s main stock index, dipped to a low of 1780.63 on June 25, 2013, but later rose to a high of

Our combined ratio[1] stayed flat at 98.4% in FY2013. A rise in large-loss events pushed our commercial-line combined ratio up by 4.5%p

2059.58 on October 30, 2013. The market closed 2013 on a relatively upbeat note at 2011.34. One of the main factors that led to the

to 96.4%. We posted a combined ratio of 100.5% for personal lines, down 0.8%p as a result of an improvement in long-term business.

market fluctuation was uncertainty surrounding the pace and extent of the US Fed unwinding its asset purchases.

The ratio of our overseas operations improved by 1.1%p to 95.8%, a reflection of a decrease in global natural catastrophe losses as
Korean Re’s shares made fairly stable performance over the course of FY2013 although the price remained at relatively low levels

well as of our overseas portfolio readjustment.

compared to their peak in November 2011. Reflecting our solid capital position and retained earnings, the Korean Re stock reached its
By line of business, the earned-incurred loss ratios were 49.3% for fire, comprehensive and engineering insurance, 76.7% for marine

high of KRW 12,800 on September 30 and then steadily declined and closed at 11,450 on December 31, 2013. Still, financial analysts

and aviation, 68.5% for casualty, 97.6% for long-term, 87.3% for motor and 84.0% for life. Our overseas operations (excluding

mostly maintained optimistic views of the company’s future market value based on three reasons.

engineering, hull, cargo, aviation and life facultative business) recorded an earned-incurred loss ratio of 66.0%.
First, Korean Re stays strongly committed to improving the profitability of its overseas operations. Since FY2008, Korean Re has been
Premium volume
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Incurred losses
Net claims paid
Loss adjustment expenses
Change in outstanding claims
reserve
Net operating expenses
Earned premiums
Combined ratio

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

YoY Change

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(%)

2,261,082
2,144,600

2,042,882
1,937,641

2,931,259
2,875,497

2,602,487
2,552,979

3.2
0.9

52,236

47,195

60,163

53,415

18.0

64,246
527,155

58,046
476,283

△4,509

△4,003

663,174

588,792

214.3
3.9

2,876,899
98.4%

2,599,271
98.4%

3,675,908
98.4%

3,263,615
98.4%

4.2
-

working hard to reorganize its overseas business portfolio by country and business line in a way that maximizes its profitability. This
effort began to pay off in FY2009. The upward trend of its business performance continued until now except for the “one-off” loss from
massive floods in Thailand in 2011. The overall combined ratio for overseas operations in FY2013 was 95.8%, excluding the foreign
exchange gains/losses effect. The company will remain firmly focused on its overseas business as one of the most valuable profit
engines for the future.
Second, we have taken a series of steps to strengthen our risk management policies. In the aftermath of the Thai flood losses, Korean
Re readjusted its proportional treaties for Thailand to exclude such natural catastrophes as floods and include event limits. Moreover,
Korean Re increased the excess of loss limit worldwide from USD 50 million to USD 80 million. It has also reclassified non-catastrophe
countries such as Indonesia or Burma into catastrophe countries in order to prevent and minimize contingency risks. Overall, the
company increased excess of loss protection limits of each country and reinforced underwriting guidelines regarding catastrophe risk

FY2013: April 1 – December 31 (9 months)
FY2012: April 1, 2012 – March 31, 2013 (12 months)
YoY Change: FY2013 vs. April 1 – December 31 of FY2012 based on the figures in KRW

assumption, especially for high-risk territories and risk accumulation zones.
Third, Korean Re has always adhered to a policy of conservative asset management. Its current investment portfolio, which is mainly

Solvency margin ratio

composed of government bonds, has enjoyed a very enviable ROI over the past five years. In particular, the company was able to

Solvency margin ratio

FY2013

FY2012

YoY Change

206.3%

208.7%

△2.4%p

produce positive earnings despite the financial crisis and exceptional natural catastrophe losses in 2011 due to our investment profits.
These factors, combined with a favorable market environment, will help shore up Korean Re’s share price in the course of FY2014. We
will work to make sure that an adequate share of the company’s success is distributed to our shareholders in the years to come.

Net income
In terms of profitability, Korean Re made fairly impressive results in FY2013. Net income after taxes amounted to USD 111.9 million.
We earned USD 80.1 million worth of insurance operating income and USD 76.5 million worth of investment income (when gains and/
or losses from foreign exchange hedging for insurance liabilities are excluded, investment income amounted to USD 106.2 million).
Our strong investment results came in the face of adverse conditions such as economic slowdown and accommodative monetary
policy both at home and abroad. The investment yield stood at 4.2%. The largest chunk of our investment income came from our bond
holdings, which generated an income of USD 71.6 million. The solid gains from our bond investment were attributed to our prudent
management of investment positions in tandem with interest rate movements. We slightly increased our holdings of foreign assets to
maintain a target level of foreign exchange exposures related to our insurance liabilities. Our foreign investment income net of foreign
exchange gains and losses reached USD 21.4 million.
[1] The combined ratio mentioned in this report is based on the separate financial statements of Korean Re.

Korean Re Annual Report 2013

62

Financial Review

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

As of December 31 and March 31, 2013				

For the 9-month period ended December 31, 2013 and the year ended March 31, 2013

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

5,940,631
4,566,412

5,367,340
4,125,737

7,570,401
5,645,485

6,721,279
5,012,268

958,782

866,256

1,316,120

1,168,500

-

-

6,515

5,784

263,580

238,144

356,738

316,725

5. Interest income

72,599

65,593

97,918

86,935

6. Dividend income

2,697

2,437

4,551

4,041

42,381
34,180

38,291
30,882

86,749
56,325

77,019
50,007

Ⅰ. Operating revenues

Assets
Ⅰ. Cash and cash equivalents

1. Premium income

293,791

275,705

388,146

345,664

5,325,817

4,997,951

5,182,998

4,615,725

1. Deposits

596,074

559,379

478,491

426,121

3. Reversal of insurance contract liabilities

2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

426,862

400,584

478,357

426,001

4. Expenses recovered

2,302,826

2,161,060

1,634,944

1,456,001

-

-

460,121

409,761

2,000,055

1,876,928

2,131,085

1,897,840

Ⅱ. Financial assets

3. Available-for-sale financial assets
4. Held-to-maturity financial assets
5. Loans and receivables
Ⅲ. Property and equipment
Ⅳ. Investment properties
Ⅴ. Intangible assets
Ⅵ. Other assets
Total assets

2. Reinsurance income

7. Investment income
8. Other operating revenues

79,361

74,475

79,408

70,717

105,373

112,559

100,240

15,978
1,792,762

14,994
1,682,397

15,870
1,527,078

14,133
1,359,941

1. Insurance claims and benefits related expenses

5,776,060
3,098,809

5,218,650
2,799,763

7,383,864
4,199,466

6,555,665
3,728,440

2. Reinsurance expenses

1,669,240

1,508,153

1,901,847

1,688,529

7,619,993

7,150,894

7,306,060

6,506,421

3. Provision for insurance contract liabilities

78,282

70,728

68,541

60,853

788,246

712,178

1,022,458

907,776

52,236

47,195

60,164

53,416

1,707

1,542

3,140

2,788

133

120

297

264

6,905

6,239

53,451

47,456

Ⅱ. Operating expenses

4. Operating and administrative expenses

Ⅰ. Insurance contract liabilities

4,113,348

3,860,124

3,774,468

3,361,357

5. Loss adjustment expenses

Ⅱ. Financial liabilities

1,805,060

1,693,938

1,837,021

1,635,961

6. Asset management expenses

250,646

235,216

281,799

250,956

1. Current income tax liabilities

13,888

13,033

11,722

10,439

2. Deferred income tax liabilities

200,897

188,529

207,517

184,805

3. Retirement benefits
4. Others
Total liabilities

FY2012

112,285

Liabilities

Ⅲ. Other liabilities

63

7. Interest expenses
8. Investment expenses
9. Other operating expenses

6,794

6,376

27,638

24,613

Ⅲ. Operating profits

29,067

27,278

34,922

31,100

Ⅳ. Non-operating income

6,169,054

5,789,277

5,893,288

5,248,275

Ⅴ. Non-operating expenses
Ⅵ. Net income before income tax expenses

Capital and Reserves

72,733

74,500

66,144

148,689

186,537

165,614

47

42

43

38

1,903

1,719

1,669

1,482

162,715

147,012

184,911

164,171

59,058

55,421

59,058

52,594

38,847

35,098

43,725

38,821

Ⅱ. Capital surplus

176,374

165,515

176,374

157,070

Ⅷ. Net income

123,868

111,914

141,186

125,350

Ⅲ. Capital adjustments

(35,311)

(33,138)

(35,311)

(31,446)

Ⅸ. Other comprehensive income (expenses)

(57,547)

(51,994)

20,251

17,980

49,041

46,021

106,587

94,921

66,321

59,921

161,437

143,330

Ⅰ. Capital stock

Ⅳ. Accumulated other comprehensive income

1,201,777

1,127,793

1,106,064

985,007

Total shareholders’ equity

Ⅴ. Retained earnings

1,450,939

1,361,612

1,412,772

1,258,146

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

7,619,993

7,150,889

7,306,060

6,506,421

Note : Korean won amounts have been converted into U.S. dollars based on the exchange rate of KRW1,065.60 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,122.90 for FY2012.
For the I/S section, the applicable exchange rate was KRW1,106.81 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,126.33 for FY2012.

Ⅶ. Income tax expenses

80,502
164,571

Ⅹ. Total comprehensive income

Note : Korean won amounts have been converted into U.S. dollars based on the exchange rate of KRW1,065.60 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,122.90 for FY2012.
For the I/S section, the applicable exchange rate was KRW1,106.81 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,126.33 for FY2012.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 9-month period ended December 31, 2013 and the year ended March 31, 2013

For the 9-month period ended December 31, 2013 and the year ended March 31, 2013

(Units: KRW million)

As of April 1, 2012 (Before adjustments)
Cumulative effect of modified application of
the accounting treatment
As of April 1, 2012 (After adjustments)
Stock dividends
Dividends
Subtotal

Capital
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Capital Accumulated
Adjustment other Comprehensive income

57,954

176,375

(35,311)

57,954

176,375

(35,311)

1,104

(1)

59,058

176,374

(35,311)

Retained
Earnings

Total

88,139

970,804

1,257,961

(1,802)
86,337

1,802
972,606

1,257,961

(1,104)
(6,624)

(1)
(6,624)

964,878

1,251,336

141,186

86,337

Net income
Gain on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

24,653

141,186
24,653

Currency translation difference

(1,721)

(1,721)

Actuarial loss on post employment benefit obligations
Total comprehensive income

(2,682)
20,251

(2,682)
161,437

141,186

65

(Units: USD thousand)

As of April 1, 2012 (Before adjustments)
Cumulative effect of modified application of
the accounting treatment
As of April 1, 2012 (After adjustments)
Stock dividends
Dividends
Subtotal

Capital
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Capital Accumulated
Adjustment other Comprehensive income

54,386

165,517

(33,137)

54,386

165,517

(33,137)

1,036

(1)

55,422

165,516

(33,137)

Retained
Earnings

Total

82,713

911,040

1,180,519

(1,691)
81,022

1,691
912,731

1,180,519

(1,036)
(6,216)

(1)
(6,216)

905,479

1,174,302

132,494

81,022

Net income
Gain on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

23,135

132,494
23,135

Currency translation difference

(1,615)

(1,615)

Actuarial loss on post employment benefit obligations
Total comprehensive income

(2,517)
19,004

132,494

(2,517)
151,499

As of March 31, 2013

59,058

176,374

(35,311)

106,587

1,106,064

1,412,772

As of March 31, 2013

55,422

165,516

(33,137)

100,025

1,037,973

1,325,800

As of April 1, 2013
Dividends

59,058

176,374

(35,311)

106,587

1,106,063
(28,154)

1,412,771
(28,154)

As of April 1, 2013
Dividends

55,422

165,516

(33,137)

100,025

1,037,972
(26,421)

1,325,799
(26,421)

Subtotal

59,058

176,374

(35,311)

106,587

1,077,909

1,384,617

Subtotal

55,422

165,516

(33,137)

100,025

1,011,551

1,299,378

123,868

116,242

Net income
Loss on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

(47,253)

123,868
(47,253)

Currency translation difference

(10,815)

(10,815)

Actuarial loss on post employment benefit obligations
Total comprehensive income

521
(57,547)

123,868

521
66,321

49,041

1,201,777

1,450,939

As of December 31, 2013

59,058

176,374

(35,311)

Note : Korean won amounts have been converted into U.S. dollars based on the exchange rate of KRW1,065.60 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,122.90 for FY2012.
For the I/S section, the applicable exchange rate was KRW1,106.81 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,126.33 for FY2012.

Net income
Loss on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

(44,344)

116,242
(44,344)

Currency translation difference

(10,149)

(10,149)

Actuarial loss on post employment benefit obligations
Total comprehensive income

489
(54,004)

116,242

489
62,238

46,022

1,127,794

1,361,617

As of December 31, 2013

55,422

165,516

(33,137)

Note : Korean won amounts have been converted into U.S. dollars based on the exchange rate of KRW1,065.60 per US$1.00 .
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 9-month period ended December 31, 2013 and the year ended March 31, 2013

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

FY2013

FY2013

FY2012

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

(63,967)
162,715

(60,029)
152,698

123,724
184,911

110,183
164,673

(285,153)

(267,599)

(197,618)

(175,989)

Accounting. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial

3. Receipt of interest income

84,365

79,171

129,895

115,678

instruments designated as hedges, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and available-for-sale financial

4. Payment of interest expense

(1,372)

(1,288)

(229)

(204)

5. Receipt of dividend income
6. Payment of income tax

3,859
(28,381)

3,621
(26,634)

3,925
2,840

3,495
2,529

(2,153)
21
(2,174)

(2,020)
20
(2,040)

(1,394)
1
(1,395)

(1,241)
1
(1,242)

(28,234)

(26,496)

(6,604)

(5,881)

0

0

21

19

(28,234)

(26,496)

(6,625)

(5,900)

(94,355)

(88,546)

115,725

103,059

(1)

(1)

(2)

(2)

388,146

364,251

272,423

242,607

293,791

275,705

388,146

345,664

Ⅰ.Cash flows from operating activities
1. Net profit before income taxes
2. Cash generated from operations

Ⅱ.Cash flows from investing activities
1. Cash inflows
2. Cash outflows
Ⅲ.Cash flows from financing activities
1. Cash inflows
2. Cash outflows
Ⅳ. Net increase(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents (Ⅰ+Ⅱ+Ⅲ)
Ⅴ. Effects of changes in foreign exchange rate
cash and cash equivalents
Ⅵ. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period
Ⅶ. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period

Note : Korean won amounts have been converted into U.S. dollars based on the exchange rate of KRW1,065.60 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,122.90 for FY2012.
For the I/S section, the applicable exchange rate was KRW1106.81 per US$1.00 for FY2013 and KRW1,126.33 for FY2012.

(1) Basis of financial statement preparation
Korean Reinsurance Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) prepares statutory financial statements in the Korean language
in accordance with Korea International Financial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”) enacted by Regulations on External Audit and

assets that have been measured at fair value. 								
									
For the convenience of the reader, the consolidated financial statements have been condensed, restructured and translated from
Korean to English.								
									
									
(2) Change of fiscal year
The Group changed the closing date of each fiscal year from March 31 to December 31 in accordance with the amended Insurance
Business Act.								
									
(3) Classification and measurement of financial assets
Financial assets within the scope of K-IFRS 1039 are classified as financial assets at FVTPL, available for-sale financial assets, heldto-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables, or as derivative financial assets designated as hedges, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 						
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date when the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
							
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transactions costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit and loss.

(4) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange at each reporting date and the resulting unrealized foreign currency translation gain or loss is credited or charged to profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising from the retranslation of
non-monetary items is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences
on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively). Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions and accordingly, no translation difference is
recorded.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(5) Reinsurance assets

(9) Amendment to Korean IFRS 1019, Employee Benefits

Reinsurance assets are defined as a cedant’s net contractual right under a reinsurance contract by K-IFRS 1104 “Insurance Contract”

Korean IFRS 1019, Employee Benefits, was amended as all actuarial gains and losses incurred are immediately recognized in other

and are recorded in the amount a reinsurance company assumed as policy reserve. Reinsurance assets are neither offset against the

comprehensive income. All past service costs incurred from changes of pension plans are immediately recognized, and expected

relevant policy reserve or reinsurance income or expense arising from the reinsurance arrangements nor against the relevant expense

returns on interest costs and plan assets that used to be separately calculated are now changed to calculating net interest expense

or income resulting from the relevant insurance contracts. The Group considers whether the reinsurance assets are impaired at

(income) by applying discount rate used in measuring defined benefit obligation in net defined benefit liabilities (assets). The

each reporting date, and if the reinsurance assets are impaired, the Group reduces its carrying amount and accordingly, recognizes

Group applies the accounting policy retroactively in accordance with the amended standards and the consolidated statements of

impairment loss in profit or loss.								

comprehensive income is restated by reflecting adjustments resulting from the retrospective application.

					

									
									

The results of the retrospective application of changes in these accounting policies are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

(6) Property and equipment								

FY2012

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. The cost includes an
expenditure which has directly occurred for the acquisition of the asset. The initial and subsequent costs are recognized as an asset
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the costs of the asset can be

Operating profits increased
Income tax expenses increased

measured reliably. The other maintenances and repairs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred and the carrying amount of

Net profit increased

certain parts that are replaced is derecognized. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

use is included in the cost of the related asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.					

FY2012

(KRW)

(USD)

3,538
856

3,141
760

2,682

2,381

(2,682)
-

(2,381)
-

			
									
(7) Investment properties								
Investment properties are recognized as assets only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow

2. Translation of consolidated financial statements indicated in foreign currencies

to the Group and the costs of the assets can be measured reliably Investment properties are initially recognized at cost and transaction

Assets and liabilities, including capital and reserves indicated in the Financial Statements, are translated into the U.S. Dollars at the rate

costs are included in the initial measurement. The investment properties are also subsequently measured at cost.			

of 1065.60 Korean won to 1 US Dollar, the telegraphic transfer selling rate of exchange as of December 31, 2013. The profit and loss

					

account is translated at 1106.81 Korean won to 1 US Dollar, the average exchange rate of the period.

Investment properties are derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of the assets is recognized as profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which the asset is derecognized. Transfers are made to or from investment properties only when there is a change in use.
							
														

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

(8) Insurance contract liabilities								

FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

Cash on hand
Short-term bank deposits

3
293,788

3
275,702

Total

293,791

275,705

The Insurance reserves are established in accordance with the following principles stipulated in the Regulations of Insurance
Supervision and related Rules & Regulations :								
									
(a) Reserve for outstanding claims							
Reserves for outstanding claims represent estimated claims payable for accidents covered by insurance which occurred before
the end of a reporting period and for which the amount of claims payable is not yet determined. The expenses incurred in the
course of settlement of insured events, such as lawsuits, are added to the reserves and the claims to be reimbursed through the
sale of pledged assets or exercise of reimbursement rights, which are obtained in the course of settlement of the insured events,
are deducted from the reserves.							
									
(b) Unearned premium reserve							
Premiums written relating to future periods are stated as Unearned premium reserve and are normally determined by lines of
insurance and types of policy.							
									

This figure differs from that of the ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ as a result of the difference in exchange rates.
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4. Financial assets

7. Available-for-sale financial assets

Carrying amount and fair value of financial assets as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Details of available-for-sale financial assets as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Carrying
amount

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Fair
value

(KRW)

(USD)

(KRW)

(USD)

596,074
426,862

559,379
400,584

596,074
426,862

559,379
400,584

Available-for-sale financial assets

2,302,826

2,161,060

2,302,826

2,161,060

Loans
Receivables

77,339
1,922,716

72,578
1,804,351

77,748
1,922,595

72,962
1,804,237

Total

5,325,817

4,997,951

5,326,105

4,998,222

Deposits
Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
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(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

52,360
89,732

49,137
84,208

Government and public bonds

861,856

808,799

Special bonds

725,743

681,065

Corporate bonds

384,094

360,449

Stocks
Other equity investments

Beneficiary certificates
Overseas securities
Others
Total

34,689

32,553

149,950
4,402

140,719
4,131

2,302,826

2,161,060

5. Deposits
Deposits as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

Term deposits
Overseas deposits
Other bank deposits

53,050
146,834
396,190

49,784
137,795
371,800

Total

596,074

559,379

8. Loans and receivables
Loans as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013
Loans
Secured by real estate loans
Unsecured loans
Subtotal

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

77,623
565

72,844
530

78,188

73,375

(355)

(333)

6. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Discount account on present value)

(216)

(203)

(278)

(261)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

(Reserve for doubtful account)
(Deferred origination fees)

1,912,861

1,795,102

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

Receivables
Insurance receivables
Account receivables
Accrued income

Financial assets held for trading
Listed securities
Beneficiary certificates

29,587
397,275

27,766
372,818

Other deposits

Total

426,862

400,584

(Discount account on present value)
(Reserve for doubtful account)

Subtotal

Total

1,168

1,096

26,410

24,784

550

516

1,940,989

1,821,499

(7)
(18,266)

(7)
(17,142)

2,000,055

1,876,928
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9. Other assets

(2) Unearned Premium Reserves
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

Other assets as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013
Reinsurance assets
Compensation receivables
Prepaid expenses
Advanced payments
Total

73

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

1,693,293
67,421

1,589,051
63,270

564
31,484

529
29,546

1,792,762

1,682,397

(USD)

Fire
Marine

94,614
74,091

88,789
69,530

Motor

303,101

284,442

Surety

98,140

92,098

Engineering

173,895

163,190

Liability

122,237

114,712

Personal accident

108,881

102,178

Comprehensive

203,630

191,094

Overseas

430,829

404,306

28
59,964

26
56,273

1,669,410

1,566,639

Long-term
Other casualty

10. Insurance contract liabilities

FY2013

(KRW)

Total

The Group accumulated Insurance contract liabilities in accordance with Insurance Supervisory Regulations. Insurance contract
liabilities as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

11. Capital and reserves

(1) Reserves for outstanding claims
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

Fire
Marine

72,870
285,005

68,384
267,460

Motor

106,808

100,233

Surety

19,875

18,651

Engineering

84,335

79,143

159,541

149,719

Liability
Personal accident

95,664

89,775

Comprehensive

222,768

209,054

Overseas

948,210

889,837

Long-term
Other casualty

323,351
125,511

303,445
117,784

2,443,938

2,293,485

Total

(1) Capital stock
Details of capital stock as of December 31, 2013 is as follows:			
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

Number of common shares authorized (shares)
Par value

320,000,000
500

320,000,000
0.5

Number of common shares issued and outstanding (shares)
Capital stock

118,116,781
59,058

118,116,781
55,421

(2) Capital surplus
Capital surplus consists of the following as of December 31, 2013:			
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013
Paid-in capital in excess of par value
Other capital reserve
Total

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

103,729
72,645
176,374

97,343
68,172
165,515
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Independent Auditor's Report

(3) Capital adjustments

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Korean Reinsurance Company,					

Capital adjustments consist of the following as of December 31, 2013:

			
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

Treasury stock
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FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

(35,311)

(33,138)

						
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Korean Reinsurance Company and its subsidiaries(the “Group”)
as of December 31, 2013 and March 31, 2013, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position, comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the period ended December 31, 2013 and the year ended March 31, 2013.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Korean International Financial Reporting Standards (K-IFRS). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

(4) Accumulated other comprehensive income

statements based on our audit.		

Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of the following as of December 31, 2013:

		

					

(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those standards require

FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

(12,994)
68,998

(12,194)
64,750

Currency translation differences
Actuarial loss on post employment benefit obligations, net

(3,000)
(3,963)

(2,815)
(3,720)

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

Total

49,041

46,021

				

Valuation loss on available-for-sale financial assets, net
Asset revaluation surplus

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.			
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as of December 31, 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with K-IFRS.

(5) Retained earnings
Retained earnings as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

			
(Units: KRW million, USD thousand)
FY2013

FY2013

(KRW)

(USD)

29,529
696,118

27,711
653,264

Business rationalization reserves

2,033

1,908

Reserve for credit losses

1,935

1,816

339,228
132,934

318,345
124,749

1,201,777

1,127,793

Legal reserves
Catastrophe reserves

Voluntary reserve
Others
Total

March 5, 2014

Ernst & Young Hanyoung
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Gross Written Premium

Loss Reserve

Catastrophe Reinsurance

Retention

The gross premium income (i.e. written, instead of earned)

For an individual loss, an estimate of the amount the insurer

A form of excess of loss reinsurance that (subject to a specified

The amount of insurance liability (in “pro rata,” for participation

of an insurance company, adjusted for additional or return

expects to pay for the reported claim. For total losses,

limit) indemnifies the reinsured company for the amount of

with the reinsurer) or loss (in “excess of loss,” for indemnity

premiums but before deducting any premiums for reinsurance

estimates of expected payments for both reported and

loss in excess of a specified retention with respect to an

of excess loss by the reinsurer) which an insurer assumes (or

ceded.

unreported claims.

accumulation of losses resulting from a catastrophic event or

retains) for its own account.

series of events. The actual reinsurance document is referred to
as “a catastrophe cover.”

Combined Ratio

Non-Proportional Reinsurance

The sum of the expense ratio and the loss ratio.

Reinsurance in which the reinsurer’s response to a loss

Earned Premium

percentage of the policy limit. In “excess of loss” contracts, the
retention of loss is 1) a monetary amount of loss (comparable

depends on its size. So named because the premium in non-

Hard Market

to a deductible used in primary insurance), 2) a percentage

proportional reinsurance is not proportional to the coverage

The scarcity of a product or service (as opposed to a soft

amount of each layer of insurance liability, 3) an amount of loss

limits.

market, in which a product or service is readily available

which exceeds the reinsurance in place, or 4) all three.

That portion of the written premium that is equal to the expired

and easy to buy). In the reinsurance world, a hard market is

portion of the time during which the insurance or reinsurance

characterized by prudent underwriting and adequate pricing,

was in effect.

In “pro rata” contracts, the retention of liability will be a

Shareholders’ Equity

while a soft one reflects sloppy underwriting and insufficient

Risk

The value of a company which is the property of its ordinary

pricing.

Defined variously as uncertainty of loss, chance of loss, or the

shareholders (the company’s assets less its liabilities.)

difference of the actual results from the expected ones. The
term is also used to identify the object of insurance protection,

Expense Ratio
Expenses (other than loss adjustment expenses) incurred

Investment Income

e.g., a building, an automobile, a human life, or exposure to

during a specific period of time, divided by premiums written

Proportional Reinsurance

Money earned from invested assets. May also include realized

liability. In reinsurance, each reinsured company customarily

during the same period.

A term describing quota share and surplus share reinsurance,

capital gains or be reduced by capital losses over the same

makes its own rules for defining a risk.

in which the reinsurer shares a proportional part of the

period.

ceded insurance liability, premiums, and losses of the ceding

Facultative Reinsurance

company.

Risk Based Capital

In “pro rata” reinsurance, this refers to the reinsurance of

Original/Direct/Primary Insurer

The amount of capital needed to absorb the various risks of

part or all of the insurance covered by a single policy, with

The insurer that writes a policy for a policyholder (which in turn

operating an insurance business. For example, a higher risk

separate negotiations for each policy cession of the insurance

Treaty Reinsurance

may or may not create the need for reinsurance).

business requires more capital than one with lower risks. The

- for sharing liability, premium, and loss. In “excess of loss”

A standing agreement between reinsured and reinsurer 1) for

reinsurance, it refers to the reinsurance of each policy, with

the cession and assumption of certain risks as defined in the

separate negotiations for each - for indemnity of loss in excess

“pro rata” treaty, or 2) for indemnity by the reinsurer only for the

Professional Reinsurer

of the reinsured party’s loss retention.

reinsured’s losses over and above the reinsured’s loss retention.

A term used to designate an organization whose business is

Underwriting Capacity

mainly reinsurance and related services, as contrasted with

The maximum amount of money an insurer or reinsurer is

calculation is unique to each company.

other insurance organizations that may operate reinsurance

willing to risk in a single loss event on a single risk or in a given

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)

Broker

assuming departments in addition to their basic and primary

period. The limit of capacity for an insurer or reinsurer may also

Liability for future payments on losses that have already

A reinsurance intermediary who negotiates reinsurance

insurance business.

be imposed by law or regulatory authority.

occurred but have not yet been reported in the reinsurer’s

contracts between a reinsured and a reinsurer on behalf of the

records.

reinsured, receiving a commission for the placement and other
services rendered from the reinsurer.

Underwriting Income
The excess of premiums earned by a reinsurer during any

Loss Ratio

reporting period over the combined total of expenses and

Losses incurred, expressed as a percentage of earned

losses incurred during the same period.

premiums.

organization

Fire Dept.
Marine Dept.

network

Casualty Dept.
Long-Term & Motor Dept.
Life Dept.
Overseas Dept.
Business R&D Dept.
CLAIMS & SURVEY Dept.
Planning & Management Office
General Affairs Dept.
Accounting Dept.
ASSET MANAGEMENT OFFICE
Information systems dept.
Risk Management Team
Actuarial Dept.
Auditing Office
Compliance Team
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